2 March 2020

At the conclusion of the Corporate, Finance, Properties
and Tenders Committee

Environment Committee

pajosuuo)/[eqoln/uaain



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Agenda

1. Disclosures of Interest

2. Grants and Sponsorship - Round Three 2019/20 - Environmental Grants -
Environmental Performance Grants

3. Streetscape Improvements - Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont

4, Project Scope - Lawrence Hargrave Reserve Upgrade, Elizabeth Bay



GITY OF SYDNEY ©

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for
Speakers at Council Committees

As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during
Committee meetings about items on the agenda.

Webcast

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are audio visually recorded
and webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.

Consent

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and
personal information.

Disclaimer

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements.

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility.

Guidelines

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to:

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9310 or emailing secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
before 12.00 noon on the day of the meeting.

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation.

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and

prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time.

4, Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the
Committee may not already know.

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing.

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first.

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au with printed copies available at Sydney Town Hall
immediately prior to the meeting. City staff are also available prior to the meeting to assist.



http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/

Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Item 1.

Disclosures of Interest

Pursuant to the provisions of the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice and the City of
Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to disclose pecuniary interests in any
matter on the agenda for this meeting.

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the
agenda for this meeting.

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years.
In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed.

Written disclosures of interest received by the Chief Executive Officer in relation to items for
consideration at this meeting will be laid on the table.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Item 2.

Grants and Sponsorship - Round Three 2019/20 - Environmental Grants -
Environmental Performance Grants

File No: S117676

Summary

The City of Sydney’s Grants and Sponsorship Program supports initiatives and projects that
build the social, cultural, environmental and economic life of the city. To achieve the
objectives of Sustainable Sydney 2030 requires genuine partnership between government,
business and the community.

The provision of grants and sponsorships is a mechanism to further the aims identified in the
City’s social, economic and environmental policies. Applications are assessed against these
policies and against broad City objectives and plans. In this way, the City and the community
act collaboratively to bring to life Sustainable Sydney 2030 and the City of Villages it
envisions.

The City advertised the following three environmental grant programs in Round Three of the
annual grants and sponsorship program for 2019/20:

° Environmental Performance - Building Operations: funding is available to help lower
the costs of implementing building operations efficiency measures;

o Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessments: funding is available to
undertake building performance ratings and certifications, energy audits and
assessments to enable a building or facility owner to understand their opportunities to
improve environmental performance; and

. Environmental Performance — Innovation: funding is available to assess or
demonstrate new technologies or processes that are currently not being implemented
in the local market, but have the potential to achieve greenhouse gas emissions
reductions and resource efficiencies that could be rolled out at scale within the local
area.

For the Environmental Performance Grants, 35 eligible applications were received. This
report recommends a total of 24 grants to a total value of $312,630 for the 2019/20 financial
year.

On 11 December 2017, Council adopted a revised Grants and Sponsorship Policy. All grants
in this report were assessed against criteria and guidelines set out in this policy, with
reference to Sustainable Sydney 2030, the Environmental Action 2016-2021 Strategy and
Action Plan, and the Residential Apartments Sustainability Plan.

All grant recipients will be required to sign a contract, meet specific performance outcomes
and acquit their grant.

All cash figures in this report exclude GST.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Recommendation

It is resolved that:

(A) Council approve the cash recommendations for the Environmental Performance -
Building Operations Grant Program as per Attachment A to the subject report;
(B) Council note the applications not recommended for a cash grant for the Environmental
Performance - Building Operations Grant Program as per Attachment B to the subject
report;
(C) Council approve the cash recommendations for the Environmental Performance -
Innovation Grant Program as per Attachment C to the subject report;
(D) Council note the applications not recommended for a cash grant for the Environmental
Performance - Innovation Grant Program as per Attachment D to the subject report;
(E) Council approve the cash recommendations for the Environmental Performance -
Ratings and Assessment Grant Program as per Attachment E to the subject report;
(F) Council note the applications not recommended for a cash grant for the Environmental
Performance - Ratings and Assessment Grant Program as per Attachment F to the
subject report;
(G) Council note that all grant amounts are exclusive of GST; and
(H) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and
administer agreements with any organisation approved for a grant or sponsorship
under terms consistent with this resolution and the Grants and Sponsorship Policy.
Attachments
Attachment A. Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental
Performance - Building Operations Grant Program

Attachment B. Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental
Performance - Building Operations Grant Program

Attachment C. Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental
Performance - Innovation Grant Program

Attachment D. Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental
Performance - Innovation Grant Program

Attachment E. Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental
Performance - Ratings and Assessment Grant Program

Attachment F. Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental

Performance - Ratings and Assessment Grant Program



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Background

1.

The City of Sydney's Grants and Sponsorship Program supports residents, businesses
and not-for-profit organisations to undertake initiatives and projects that build the
social, cultural, environmental and economic life of the city.

On 23 October 2019, the City announced Round Three of the annual grants program
for 2019/20 as being open for applications on the City's website, with grant
applications closing on 18 November 2019.

The three environmental programs promoted were:

. Environmental Performance - Building Operations;

. Environmental Performance - Innovation; and

° Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessments.

Information about these grant programs (such as application dates, guidelines,
eligibility criteria and sample applications) was made available on the City's website.
The City actively promoted the programs through Facebook, Twitter, What's On and
Google AdWords. Email campaigns were also utilised to target interested parties who
have applied previously for grants at the City or who have expressed an interest in the
City's programs. The grants were also promoted to peak industry organisations,
networks and stakeholders.

The three Environmental Performance programs are open to appropriately
incorporated for-profit and not-for-profit organisations. Twenty applications were
received this round from for-profit organisations. Thirteen of the applications from for-
profit organisations are recommended in this report:

(@) Central Park Hotel Operations Pty Ltd;

(b) Clean Barrow Pty Ltd;

(c) Delta Q Pty Limited;

(d) Joan Products And Services Pty. Ltd;

(e) Lendlease (Millers Point) Pty Limited;

()  Maps Hotels And Resorts Sydney 1 Pty. Ltd;

(g0 New South Wales Masonic Club;

(h) Pingala - Community Renewables for Sydney Incorporated:;

(i)  Ruzi Group Pty Ltd;

()  Salter Brothers (Potts Point) Hotel Pty Ltd;

(k) Sscq (2000) Pty Ltd;

() The Pier One Developments Unit Trust; and

(m) Winadell Pty. Ltd.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

The three environmental performance grant programs aim to build capacity and
address barriers to the implementation of environmental actions within key customer
sectors.

The assessment panels for applications received under the Environmental
Performance Grants Program comprised the Sustainability Engagement Coordinator -
Cityswitch, Sustainability Programs Coordinator - Better Buildings Partnership,
Sustainability Engagement Manager, Sustainability Engagement Coordinator,
Sustainability Engagement Coordinator - Building Tune-Up, Manager Carbon Strategy,
Sustainability Data Insights Analyst, Environmental Projects Officer, Project
Development Engineer, Specialist Planner - Strategic (Sustainability), Waste Strategy
Manager, Planner, Community Engagement Coordinator, Urban Ecology Coordinator.

Environmental Performance - Building Operations Grant Program

8.

The Environmental Performance - Building Operations Grant Program aims to improve
the environmental performance of buildings by lowering the costs and mitigating the
barriers of implementing building efficiency measures, such as water monitoring in
residential apartments.

Four applications have been received and assessed. Three are recommended for
support to a value of $23,700. One application was received from the accommodation
and entertainment building sectors and two applications were received from the
residential building sector.

Environmental Performance - Innovation Grant Program

10.

The Environmental Performance - Innovation Grant Program supports the feasibility or
demonstration of new technologies or processes that are currently not being
implemented in the local market, but have the potential to achieve greenhouse gas
emissions reductions and resource efficiencies that could be rolled out at scale within
the local area. Eleven applications have been received and assessed. Seven are
recommended for support to the value of $164,017.

(@) Clean Barrow Pty Ltd propose to demonstrate the effectiveness of an innovative
filtration system for building sites to easily remove heavy contaminants from
onsite slurry leading to cleaner waterways, streets and urban ecology. Through
the project, it is proposed local tradespeople will also gain knowledge of industry
specific pollution issues and applicable council regulations, and be empowered
to implement ways to reduce their impact and save water as well as promoting
compliance.

(b) DeltaQ Pty Ltd propose to investigate the potential of industrial roof space for
solar generation to overcome the "split incentives" barriers that exist between
landlords and tenants in relation to solar developments.

(c) Joan Products and Services Pty Ltd propose to investigate the development of a
backend engine to capture the environmental performance data of hotels from
reputable data-sets and display this new resource in a user-friendly manner to
allow consumers to make sustainably informed decisions when choosing
accommodation.

(d) Lendlease propose to demonstrate the effectiveness of combining a green roof
solution with a solar PV installation to investigate energy efficiency, insulation,
biodiversity, air quality, storm water retention and run off improvements by
measuring and comparing the output of two installations located side-by-side on
similar sized buildings.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

(e) Pingala - Community Renewables for Sydney Incorporated propose to build a
community-driven road map of renewable energy solutions for Ultimo with the
aim of developing a purpose built and designed community solar solution to fit
the immediate area's varied dwellings and community needs.

(f)  Pocket City Farms propose to install monitoring systems into native bee hives to
establish a baseline for monitoring hive health to better understand the impact of
temperature fluctuations on the hives and their relationship with the urban
environment by sharing the data collected with the bee-keeping community.

() Ruzi Group Pty Ltd propose to investigate the impact of replacing their food truck
and catered events service's current usage of single use disposable cutlery and
crockery with an innovative collect, wash and re-use model.

Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessments Grant Program

11.

12.

13.

The Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessments Grant Program aims to
address barriers to the uptake of building performance ratings and assessments
across energy, water, waste and other sustainability aspects. Ratings and
assessments enable a building owner or facility manager to understand their building's
environmental performance and to identify efficiency opportunities. Applicants are
required to implement efficiency measures based on the recommendations of the
assessments.

Twenty applications have been received and assessed. Fourteen are recommended
for support to a value of $124,913. There were nine applications received from the
accommodation and entertainment building sectors, two applications received from the
commercial office building sector and nine applications received from the residential
building sector.

The 2019/20 Environmental Performance Program budget is summarised as follows:

Total cash budget $914,136
Total cash committed to previously approved applications $601,506
Total cash amount available for allocation $312,630
Total number of eligible applications 35
Total cash requested $765,457
Total number of applications recommended for cash support 24
Total amount of funding cash recommended $312,630
Amount remaining for subsequent allocation of the program $0




Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Key Implications

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 Vision

14.

Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This program is aligned with the
following strategic directions and objectives:

(@) Direction 2 provides a road map for the City to become A Leading Environmental
Performer - the grant projects recommended in this report will support the City’s
endeavours to work with our business and residential communities to reduce
greenhouse emissions and potable water use, and encourage diversion of waste
from landfill across the local government area.

Organisational Impact

15.

The grants and sponsorships contract management process will involve staff in the
City's grants and sustainability teams setting contract conditions and performance
measures for each approved project and reviewing project acquittals.

Environmental

16.

17.

18.

The recommended environmental grants under the Building Operations Program will
enhance knowledge sharing amongst building users to improve energy and water
efficiency by the installation of technology or equipment to monitor and measure
existing services.

The recommended environmental grants under the Ratings and Assessments
Program will provide energy and water savings as a result of improved monitoring and
applicants implementing efficiency measures as a condition of the grants.

The recommended environmental grants under the Innovation Program will enhance
knowledge sharing, skills uptake and capacity in best practice environmental
performance, approaches and solutions in the local area.

Budget Implications

19.

A total value of $312,630 in cash is recommended in this report and is provided in the
2019/20 Environmental Performance Grants budget.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Relevant Legislation

20.

21.

Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that a council may, in
accordance with a resolution of the council, contribute money or otherwise grant
financial assistance to persons for the purpose of exercising its functions.

Section 356(3)(a) - (d) is satisfied for the purpose of providing grant funding to for profit
organisations because:

(@) the funding is part of the Environmental Grants - Environmental Performance
Grants program;

(b) the details of the program have been included in Council's draft operation plan
for financial year 2019/20;

(c) the program's budget does not exceed five per cent of Council's proposed
income from ordinary rates for financial year 2019/20; and

(d) the program applies to a significant group of persons within the local government
area.

Critical Dates / Time Frames

22.

The funding period for Round Three of the annual Grants and Sponsorship Program

for 2019/2020 is for activity taking place from 1 May 2020 to 30 April 2021. Contracts
will be entered into with all successful applicants after Council approval is received to
ensure funding is released in time for projects starting in May.

Public Consultation

23.

24,

25.

26.

For all programs open to application in Round Three of the annual grants and
sponsorship program for 2019/20, one question and answer session was held in Town
Hall House to assist potential applicants with their applications on Wednesday 6
November 2019, 4pm to 7pm.

Twenty individual meetings were held during the question and answer sessions where
prospective applicants sought advice from City staff about their project proposals and
the application process.

Seventy-five per cent of these attendees advised they had not applied for a City of
Sydney grant previously.

Forty-five per cent of these attendees requested a member of the Indigenous
Engagement team to be present during their meeting.

EMMA RIGNEY

Director City Life

Cathy Brown, Grants Officer



Attachment A

Round Three 2019/20 — Recommended for Funding
— Environmental Performance — Building
Operations Grant Program




Environmental Performance Grants

Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance — Building Operations Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation
Name

Project Name

Project Description

$ Amount
Requested

$ Amount
Recommended

Conditions

Strata Plan No Plant - 2 Phillip Street,
22014 Sydney

unit residential building to determine if the water
condenser plant can operate more efficiently.

Sscq (2000) Pty Energy Management System Installation of an energy management system in a $10,000 $10,000 Nil
Ltd - 93 Macquarie St, Sydney 105 room hotel to monitor & reduce the use of gas
(Sir Stamford Hotel) and electricity.
Strata Plan 67022 | Water and Electricity Installation of an exhaust sensor & water monitoring $10,585 $4,700 Nil
Monitoring - 11-21 Rose system in a 5 level, 58 unit residential building to
Street, Chippendale measure and improve energy and water use.
The Owners Of Analysis of Condenser Water | Installation of a monitoring system in a 29 level, 48 $9,000 $9,000 Nil




Attachment B

Round Three 2019/20 — Not Recommended for
Funding — Environmental Performance — Building
Operations Grant Program

10




TT

Environmental Performance Grants

Not Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance — Building Operations Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation Name Project Name Project Description

Owners Corporation Strata Plan | Sub Meter installation - 4 Ward Installation of a sub-meter in an 8 level, 62 unit residential
14373 Avenue, Elizabeth Bay building to monitor water use and reduce costs.

$ Amount Requested

$14,142




Attachment C

Round Three 2019/20 — Recommended for
Funding — Environmental Performance —
Innovation Grant Program

12




€T

Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance Grants

Environmental Performance — Innovation Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Clean Barrow Pty Ltd

Organisation Name Project Name

Filtration System for
Construction Site
Waste

Project Description

building sites contaminating waterways and the urban
environment by introducing a filtering system into

A demonstration project to reduce concrete slurry from

$ Amount
Requested

$28,000

$ Amount
Recommended

$28,000

Conditions

Applicant to work with

City to ensure filtered
water is disposed of

building site processes. legally and
appropriately
Deltag Pty Limited Unlocking Industrial A feasibility study to investigate the potential of $20,000 $20,000 Nil
Roofspace for Solar PV | industrial rooftop spaces for solar installations by
Installation bringing together the landlord and their tenants, and
highlighting the benefits to both parties and the
environment.
Joan Products And Sustainable Tourism, A feasibility study to investigate the development of a $20,000 $20,000 Nil
Services Pty. Ltd. Sydney Search Engine | backend search engine for hospitality booking systems
to present accommodation sector environmental
performance data in a user friendly manner for
consumers to promote sustainably informed choices.
Lendlease (Millers Comparative Study of A demonstration project to measure the impact of $62,897 $62,897 Nil
Point) Pty Limited Two Roofs with solar incorporating a green roof with solar PV installations by
PV — one with an comparing two similar sites, located side by side, on
integrated green roof Hickson Road - Barangaroo.
Pingala - Community Sustainable Solutions A feasibility study to build a community-driven roadmap $20,000 $20,000 Nil
Renewables for Sydney | for Ultimo Community of solar energy solutions in Ultimo with the aim of
Incorporated increasing uptake of solar installation.
Pocket City Farms Monitoring Native Bees | A feasibility study to develop new technologies to $1,120 $1,120 Nil
in the City collect data and monitor the health of urban native bee
hives, with information to be shared with the wider bee-
keeping community to ensure a diverse and healthy
urban eco-system.
Ruzi Group Pty Ltd Zero-Waste Food Truck | A feasibility study to measure the impact of replacing $12,000 $12,000 Nil

and Catering Feasibility
Test

food truck single use disposable cutlery and crockery
with durable re-usables, which are collected, washed
and re-used.




Attachment D

Round Three 2019/20 — Not Recommended for
Funding — Environmental Performance
Innovation Grant Program

14




GT

Environmental Performance Grants

Not Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance — Innovation Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation Name

Advance Networks Pty Ltd

Project Name

Education of Takeaway Food
Container Users

Project Description

A demonstration project to create a network of food vendors and consumers
using purpose made and distributed reusable food tubs, with the aim of
reducing single use waste.

$ Amount
Requested

$40,000

Income Energy Pty Ltd

due to installation of tilted solar
photovoltaic panels

flat, solar panel arrays with particular emphasis on commercial premises.

Ce Boston Hotels Pty Ltd Sprayable and Paintable Solar A demonstration project to showcase the application of new sprayable and $80,000
Cells paintable solar cell technology in a commercial rooftop setting and window
glazing.
Digital Creators Pty Ltd Foldie reusable takeaway food A demonstration project to develop and supply a re-usable food container $80,000
containers scheme to reduce single use plastic containers in food courts with support for
their operators.
Impact on air-conditioning load A demonstration project to compare the effectiveness of tilted, as opposed to $80,000




Attachment E

Round Three 2019/20 — Recommended for Funding
— Environmental Performance — Ratings and
Assessment Grant Program

16




LT

Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance Grants

Environmental Performance — Ratings and Assessments Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation
Name

Central Park
Hotel
Operations Pty
Ltd

Project Name

NABERS Energy and Water
Rating - 88 Broadway,
Chippendale (Four Points by
Sheraton Sydney)

Project Description

A year 1 NABERS energy and water rating for a 297 room
hotel to identify base line energy use and opportunities to
reduce energy consumption.

$ Amount
Requested

$9,900

$ Amount
Recommended

$9,900

Conditions

(Potts Paint)
Hotel Pty Ltd

Victoria Street, Potts Point
(Holiday Inn)

energy and water use and identify efficiency opportunities
and cost savings for the building management system

Maps Hotels Energy Audit - 199 George A level 2 energy audit for a 531 room hotel to identify cost $15,000 $15,000 Applicant to
And Resorts Street, The Rocks (Four effective options to minimise energy consumption and provide a formal
Sydney 1 Pty. Seasons Hotel) identify efficiency opportunities and cost savings. NABERS energy
Ltd. rating by an
accredited
assessor
New South Level 2 Energy Audit - 169 — A level 2 energy audit for a 102 room hotel to assess energy $15,000 $15,000 Applicant to
Wales Masonic 173 Castlereagh Street, use and provide a comprehensive analysis of energy and provide an
Club Sydney (Castlereagh Boutique | cost savings opportunities. accredited
Hotel) NABERS energy
and water rating
as part of the
project
Props Strata Energy Assessment and An energy assessment and year 1 NABERS energy and $5,500 $5,500 Nil
Plan No 4815 NABERS Energy and Water water rating, including a solar power feasibility study, for a 7
Rating - 6-14 Darley Street, level, 56 unit residential building to identify cost effective
Darlinghurst (Windsor Lodge) options to minimise energy and water consumption.
Salter Brothers Level 2 Energy Audit - 203 A level 2 energy audit for a 288 room hotel to benchmark $13,650 $13,650 Nil




8T

Environmental Performance — Ratings and Assessments Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation Project Name Project Description $ Amount $ Amount Conditions
Name Requested Recommended
Sp69741 Energy Assessment and An energy assessment and year 1 NABERS energy and $7,210 $7,210 Nil
NABERS Energy and Water water rating for a 4 level, 41 unit residential building to
Rating - 181 Lawson Street, energy usage and greenhouse gas emissions, with an
Darlington emphasis on assessing the hot water system and conducting
a solar power feasibility study.
Strata Plan Energy and Water An energy and water assessment and Year 1 NABERS $39,984 $9,984 Nil
5927 Assessments and NABERS energy and water rating to identify cost effective options to
Energy and Water Ratings — 3 | minimise energy consumption and identify efficiency
buildings in Sydney Local opportunities for one residential building located at 110
Government Area Elizabeth Bay Rd, Elizabeth Bay.
This applicant applied for a further two commercial office
buildings that are not recommended for support at this stage
located at:
* 276 Pitt St, Sydney
» 321 Pitt St, Sydney
Strata Plan Energy Assessment and An energy assessment and year 1 NABERS energy and $5,884 $5,884 Nil
10641 NABERS Energy and Water water rating for a 7 level, 25 unit residential building to
Rating - 1-5 Clement Street, provide a performance benchmark to identify cost effective
Rushcutters Bay options to minimise energy consumption.
Strata Plan Energy Assessment and An energy assessment and year 1 energy and water rating $7,565 $7,565 Nil
53701 NABERS Energy and Water for a 3 level, 54 unit residential building to identify cost
Rating - 60C Park Street, effective options to minimise energy consumption and
Erskineville identify efficiency opportunities.
Strata Plan NABERS Energy and Water A year 2 NABERS energy and water rating for a 5 level, 137 $4,870 $4,870 Nil
69259 Rating Year 2 - 2-4 Powell unit residential building to assess the impact of previously
Street, Waterloo installed solar panels on energy use and NABERS rating.
Strata Plan NABERS Energy and Water A year 2 NABERS energy and water rating for a 10 level, 91 $2,483 $2,483 Nil
73333 Rating Year 2 - 16-20 Eve unit residential building to identify cost effective options to
Street, Erskineville minimise energy and water consumption, accompanied by an
action plan.
Strata Plan Energy and Water A water condenser plant assessment and year 1 NABERS $8,928 $6,028 Nil
73502 Assessment and NABERS energy and water rating for a 13 level, 264 unit residential
Energy and Water Rating - 5 building to minimise energy consumption and identify
Potter Street, Waterloo (Aria efficiency opportunities.
Apartments)




6T

Environmental Performance — Ratings and Assessments Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation
Name

Project Name

$ Amount
Requested

$ Amount
Recommended

Conditions

Project Description

The Pier One Level 2 Energy Audit - 11 A level 2 energy audit for a 220 room hotel to establish a $14,910 $14,910 Nil
Developments Hickson Road, Dawes Point baseline of energy use and identify cost effective options to

Unit Trust (Pier One Hotel) minimise energy and water usage.

Winadell Pty. NABERS Energy and Water A year 1 NABERS energy and water rating for a 169 room $6,929 $6,929 Nil
Ltd. Rating — 382-384 Pitt Street, hotel to identify base line energy use and opportunities to

Sydney

reduce energy consumption and efficiency opportunities.




Attachment F

Round Three 2019/20 — Not Recommended for
Funding — Environmental Performance —
Ratings and Assessment Grant Program

20




T

Environmental Performance Grants

Not Recommended for Funding

Environmental Performance — Ratings and Assessments Grant 2019-20 Round 3

Organisation Name

Australian National
Maritime Museum

Project Name

Green Star Performance

Certification (Australian National
Maritime Museum precinct)

Project Description

A Green Star performance certification for a 2,000 person capacity museum

to establish baseline energy use and identify opportunities to reduce energy
consumption.

$ Amount
Requested

$10,000

Centuria Property Funds Level 2 Energy Audit — 2 buildings A level 2 energy audit for 2 commercial buildings with a 40,000sgm net $30,000
Limited in Eveleigh lettable area to identify areas for reducing energy consumption and
improving efficiencies located at:
« 8 Central Ave, Eveleigh
» 13 Garden St, Eveleigh
Dexus Funds Management | Indoor Environment Quality A year 1 NABERS energy rating and year 2 IEQ (indoor environment quality) $45,000
Limited Assessments and NABERS Co- assessment for 3 commercial office buildings with a total 112,000sgm net
assess Ratings — 3 buildings in lettable area, to identify ways to reduce energy consumption and identify
Sydney CBD efficiency opportunities located at:
» 100 Harris St, Pyrmont
« 1 Farrer PI, Sydney (Governor Macquarie Tower)
« 1 Farrer PI, Sydney (Governor Phillip Tower)
EP2 Management Pty NABERS Energy Rating - 161 A year 1 NABERS energy rating for an 892 room hotel to identify cost $15,000
Limited Sussex Street, Sydney (Hyatt effective options to minimise energy consumption and identify efficiency
Regency) opportunities.
Museum Of Contemporary | Environmental Sustainability Policy Development of a sustainability policy and accompanying action plan to $15,000
Art Limited and Plan - 140 George St, The reduce the museum’s carbon footprint through waste reduction, single use
Rocks (Museum of Contemporary plastic reduction and investigating renewable power purchase agreements.
Art)
Strata Plan 18530 Condenser Water Loop and Fans A water and energy assessment for a 13 level, 86 unit residential building to $4,900

Upgrade - 17-25 Wentworth
Avenue, Sydney

upgrade the building’s cooling system to reduce energy consumption.




Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Item 3.
Streetscape Improvements - Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont

File No: X021137

Summary

This report outlines proposed changes to a small part of the Council-approved scope for
walking and cycling improvements in Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont. Two-way
separated cycleways will be delivered in Saunders and Miller Streets to provide a safe
connection for people riding between the shared pedestrian and cycle path on Anzac Bridge
and the shared zone and existing separated cycleway in Union Street, Pyrmont.

The cycleways will provide a key missing link along a NSW Government strategic bicycle
corridor that will enable people to ride between Anzac Bridge and the city centre separated
from vehicular traffic.

The project will deliver safety and amenity improvements for people walking, including a new
marked pedestrian crossing on Miller Street and three raised shared environment
intersections. No trees will be removed and additional greening will be provided.

The project originally proposed Saunders Street become a one-way street, which also
enabled seven additional parking spaces.

Community consultation was undertaken between 29 August and 9 October 2019 and
included a letter mail-out to over 1,200 local residents and businesses, an online Sydney
Your Say survey, promotion on social media and face-to-face engagement.

Council approved the project scope in-principle in December 2019, but also made a
resolution for further community consultation on a revised two-way Saunders Street design
(Option 2).

Consultation on the proposed two-way Saunders Street design was undertaken between 28
January and 11 February 2020. The proposed Option 2 design would see Saunders Street
remain a two-way street and lose four parking spaces (total net loss of 15 spaces for the
whole project).

The City has accepted a funding offer from the NSW Government as part of the Transport
for NSW Active Transport Program for construction of the project. The general conditions of
this funding is for construction to be completed in the 2020/21 financial year.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Recommendation

It is resolved that Council:

(A) approve the concept design and scope of works for streetscape improvements in
Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont, for Option 2 as described in the subject report
and shown in the consultation panels in Attachment A and drawings in Attachment B
to the subject report for progression to design development, documentation and
construction;

(B) note the estimated project costs as detailed in Confidential Attachment C to the
subject report; and

(C) note that the City has accepted a funding offer from the NSW Government as part of

the Transport for NSW Active Transport Program for construction of the project
conditional on the works being completed in the 2020/21 financial year.

Attachments
Attachment A. Consultation 2 Panels
Attachment B. Concept Design - Revised (Option 2)

Attachment C. Financial Implications (Confidential)



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Background

1.

Sydney's Cycling Future was published by Transport for NSW in December 2013 and
identified Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont, as NSW Government strategic bicycle
corridors.

The City’s Cycle Strategy and Action Plan 2018-2030 was adopted by Council in
November 2018 and included Saunders and Miller Streets as planned regional cycle
routes.

Saunders and Miller Streets are well-used cycle routes that provide a connection
between the shared pedestrian and bicycle path on Anzac Bridge and the shared zone
and separated cycleway in Union Street, Pyrmont. It is a key cycle route between the
Inner West and Sydney CBD. Counts carried out on Tuesday 26 March 2019 recorded
a total of 1,496 cyclists at the intersection of Miller and Harris Streets between 6am
and 9am, and 4pm and 7pm.

There are currently no dedicated cycling facilities along Saunders or Miller Streets
which forces people riding to share the road with motor vehicles.

There are more than three times as many people riding bicycles than in cars using
Saunders Street in the morning peak, and on Miller Street also, there are more people
riding than driving in the morning peak. In locations where the City has built separated
cycleways the number of bike trips has generally doubled within one or two years and
then doubled again in a couple more years. This shows the strong demand for safe
cycling facilities and the value in providing space for residents, workers and visitors to
ride.

The design for streetscape improvements has been developed in consultation with
Transport for NSW, Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) and the State Transit
Authority.

In December 2019, Council gave in-principle endorsement to the construction of
separated cycleways on Saunders and Miller Streets. Council requested the Chief
Executive Officer prepare a detailed concept for a two-way traffic configuration on
Saunders Street requiring vehicles to ‘yield’ in a narrow traffic lane in order to retain as
much parking as possible. The Chief Executive Officer was also requested to write to
the community about the resolutions and undertake further consultation for a minimum
of two weeks from 27 January 2020.

In response to the December 2019 Council resolution, a two-way design option was
devised that provides for a separated cycleway and retains two-way vehicle access,
but results in four fewer parking spaces in Saunders Street. The revised design retains
all other aspects of the previous design including the proposed change to traffic
signals, shared environments, marked pedestrian crossings, and bus stops. The
revised design for Miller Street retains all aspects of the original design.

Public exhibition of the revised design was undertaken between 28 January 2020 and
11 February 2020.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Concept Design and Scope of Works

Separated Cycleway

10.

11.

In December 2019, Council approved two-way separated cycleways on the northern
side of Saunders and Miller Streets to provide a connection between the ramp to the
Anzac Bridge shared path and the shared zone and existing separated cycleway in
Union Street, Pyrmont.

The revised design proposes a two-way Yyield street traffic design along Saunders
Street in order to accommodate the separated cycleway and retain parking on both
sides of the street. Vehicles would be required to ‘yield’ in a narrow traffic lane.

Shared Environments

12.

13.

14.

15.

In December 2019, Council approved shared environment treatments where the
separated cycleway on Saunders Street intersects with Quarry Master Drive (east) and
where the separated cycleway on Miller Street intersects with Jones and Mount
Streets. These shared environment treatments will calm traffic and give priority to
people walking at these intersections.

Traffic volumes at the intersections of Quarry Master Drive (east) and Jones and
Mount Streets are low as these streets are used for local access only. As such, shared
environment treatments are considered appropriate at these intersections. The shared
environments will be raised to the footpath level, which will improve access and safety
for pedestrians.

The shared environment treatments will be similar to those provided as part of the
Bourke Street separated cycleway (Woolloomooloo to Waterloo) and George Street
separated cycleway (Redfern to Waterloo).

The design of the shared environment treatment has been developed by the City in
close consultation with RMS and Transport for NSW. The proposed treatment has
received in-principle approval from RMS.

Marked Pedestrian Crossing

16. There is currently no pedestrian crossing facility on Miller Street between Harris and
Bank Streets, a distance of 250 metres.

17. In December 2019, Council approved a marked pedestrian crossing in Miller Street
near Miller Lane to provide a safe facility for people to cross the cycleway and road.
The pedestrian crossing will improve access to the supermarket at the corner of Miller
Street and Bulwara Road. Footpath widening will be provided on the southern side of
Miller Street in conjunction with the pedestrian crossing to increase safety by
improving sight lines and reducing the crossing distance.

Bus Stops

18. The revised design does not propose any bus stop changes to the original design.

19. There are two bus stops on the northern side of Miller Street which are located 150

metres apart:
o Bus Stop 200915, located west of Jones Street; and

. Bus Stop 200932, located east of Mount Street.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

20.

21.

22.

In December 2019, Council approved an in-lane Bus Stop island between the
separated cycleway and traffic lane for Bus Stop 200932. The island will include a bus
shelter and will be 16 metres long to accommodate articulated buses. A raised marked
pedestrian crossing in the separated cycleway will provide pedestrian access between
the footpath and Bus Stop island. Similar to the Bus Stop islands in Campbell Street,
Surry Hills and Bourke Street, Woolloomooloo, cyclists must give way to pedestrians at
the marked pedestrian crossing.

In December 2019, Council approved the closure of Bus Stop 200915 as this section
of Miller Street is not suitable for an in-lane Bus Stop island. Due to the proximity of the
signalised intersection of Bank and Miller Streets, drivers would block the intersection
if buses continued to stop at this location.

State Transit Authority has provided in principle support for the proposed Bus Stop
changes.

Parking and Loading Zones

23.

24.

25.

26.

To facilitate two-way traffic and a separated cycleway, the proposed revised design
would result in four fewer parking spaces on Saunders Street. This would be in
addition to 11 fewer parking spaces on Miller Street required for the separated
cycleway. The total net loss of parking would be 15 spaces.

The original one-way proposal would have created seven new parking spaces in
Saunders Street.

In Miller Street, it is proposed to remove eight 2P ticket permit parking spaces, three
Loading Zone / 2P ticket spaces and three car share spaces to accommodate the
separated cycleway and marked pedestrian crossing.

To offset the loss of the part-time Loading Zone spaces in Miller Street, three part-time
Loading Zone spaces will be provided nearby in Harris Street. The changes will
provide part-time Loading Zone spaces within 75 metres of the existing Loading Zone
in Miller Street. Timed parking will be provided outside Loading Zone times.

Traffic Signals

27.

28.

29.

The revised design does not propose changes to the scope approved by Council in
December 2019.

Bicycle traffic signal detectors will be provided in the cycleway at Miller Street on
approach to Harris Street. These detectors will replace the existing cyclist push button
at this location. The existing bicycle lanterns installed at the intersection of Miller and
Harris Streets will provide access for cyclists between the separated cycleway and the
shared zone and separated cycleway in Union Street.

The project does not require changes to the traffic signals at the intersection of Miller
and Bank Streets. However, the changes in Saunders and Miller Streets are within the
extents of the Traffic Control Signal (TCS) plan for the intersection. Updated Traffic
Control Signal plans for the two signalised intersections were approved by RMS on 22
August 2019.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Key Implications

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 Vision

30.

Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This project is aligned with the
following strategic directions and objectives:

(a) Direction 3 - Integrated Transport for a Connected City:

0] The project will improve safety and amenity for people walking and riding
along Saunders and Miller Streets.

(i)  The separated cycleways will provide a key missing link in the City's
regional bike network.

(b) Direction 4 - A City for Walking and Cycling:

()  The pedestrian crossing in Miller Street will provide a significant safety
improvement for people walking by providing a safe crossing in Miller
Street.

(i)  The three shared environment treatments will calm traffic and give priority
to people walking at these intersections.

(i) The separated cycleways will improve rider safety on Saunders and Miller
Streets by providing facilities that are physically separated from vehicles,
encouraging more people to ride.

Organisational Impact

31. The project will create new civil infrastructure assets which will require ongoing
maintenance.

Risks

32. Risks associated with the design have been considered through the concept design
and consultation phase. These include road safety for pedestrians, cyclists and
motorists, as well as environmental impacts and community concerns.

33. Anindependent Road Safety Audit has been undertaken during the development of
the design to identify, assess and address risks associated with the proposal.

34. On 22 January 2020, the NSW Government approved a funding variation for
construction completion by 30 June 2021.

35. If the works are not completed by then, further negotiations will need to be held with

the NSW Government in respect of the continued availability of funding.

Social / Cultural / Community

36.

The streetscape improvements will improve pedestrian amenity for people of all
abilities.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

37.

People will have improved access to safe cycling infrastructure to enjoy a healthy
lifestyle with an increased level of physical activity. As part of the City’s cycle network,
this project will contribute to better connected neighbourhoods, increased transport
choice and a more active and healthy community.

Environmental

38.

39.

As part of the cycle network, the cycleway will provide a viable transport alternative
which will contribute to lower carbon emissions and reduced pollution.

The works require assessment and approval under Part 5 of the Environmental
Planning and Assessment Act 1979. A Review of Environmental Factors will be carried
out to ensure all environmental impacts have been identified and assessed and, where
required, action is identified to manage impacts

Budget Implications

40.

41.

42.

The City has accepted a funding offer from the NSW Government as part of the
Transport for NSW Active Transport Program for construction of the project.

The total forecast project construction cost, based on concept plans, has been
assessed by an independent quantity surveyor. There are sufficient funds allocated for
this project within the current year's capital works budget and future year's forward
estimates. A summary of the financial implications is included in Confidential
Attachment C.

As part of this project, upgrades to non-Council owned assets, including Ausgrid street
lighting, are required. This will be recognised as expenditure within the operating
budget.

Relevant Legislation

43.

44,

45,

46.

Roads Act 1993 for road related approvals.

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 for project assessment and
approval.

Attachment C contains confidential commercial information which, if disclosed, would
confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom Council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business.

Discussion of the matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the
public interest because it would compromise Council’s ability to negotiate fairly and
commercially to achieve the best outcomes for its ratepayers.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Critical Dates / Time Frames

47. Key dates are as follows:
Community Consultation 1 August - October 2019
Community Consultation 2 January - February 2020

Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming| November 2019 and March 2020

Committee
Construction Period April 2020 - late 2020
48. On 24 July 2019, the City received a formal funding offer from the NSW Government

for construction of the project as part of the 2019/20 Active Transport Program. The
general conditions of funding under this program is for construction to be completed by
30 June 2020.

49. On 8 August 2019, the City sent formal correspondence to the NSW Government
accepting the funding offer.

50. On 22 January 2020, the NSW Government approved a funding variation for
construction completion by 30 June 2021.

Options

51. Saunders Street is not wide enough to accommodate the two-way separated

cycleway, two traffic lanes and parking on both sides of the street. The original design
proposed restricting Saunders Street to one-way westbound, reducing it to one traffic
lane in order to accommodate the separated cycleway and retain parking on both
sides of the street. This would have created seven new parking spaces in the street.
The revised design requested by Council retains two-way traffic in Saunders Street
resulting in four fewer parking spaces.

Public Consultation 1 - Original Design

52.

53.

The design has been developed in consultation with Transport for NSW, RMS and the
State Transit Authority.

Public exhibition of the original design plans (one-way Saunders Street) was
undertaken between 29 August and 9 October 2019 and included the following
activities:

(@) mailing consultation letters and design plans to 1,252 local residents and
businesses in the area requesting feedback on the proposal;

(b) apage onthe Sydney Your Say website where the design plans could be viewed
and feedback provided via an online form and survey;

(c) advertising the one-way proposal in Saunders Street in The Sydney Morning
Herald in accordance with Section 116 of the Roads Act 1993;




Environment Committee 2 March 2020

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

(d) promotion on the SydneyCycleways and City of Sydney social media channels
including two Facebook posts and two tweets; and

(e) community engagement sessions on 3 September and 12 September 2019 in
Union Square.

A total of 134 formal submissions were received during the consultation period with 94
responses supporting the proposal, 36 opposing and four neutral.

Key points raised during community consultation include:

(a) safety improvements due to the cycleway providing dedicated space for people
riding that is physically separated from vehicles;

(b)  benefits for providing a key missing link in the cycle network; and
(c) the desire for a cycle connection to Sydney Fish Market.

Of the 36 opposing submissions received:

(@) 15 raised concerns about the loss of parking on Miller Street;

(b) eight raised concerns about the proposal to convert Saunders Street to be one-
way; and

(c) five raised concerns about the closure of Bus Stop 200915 near Jones Street.

The online survey on the Sydney Your Say website included a specific question about
the proposal for Saunders Street to be one-way. Of the 134 submissions received 71

supported the proposal for Saunders Street to be one-way, 38 opposed; and 25 were

neutral or did not comment.

Of the 38 submissions opposing the proposal for Saunders Street to be one-way, 26
raised concerns about additional journey time for people driving out of the area by
having to travel via Bank Street to access Miller Street.

Public Consultation 2 - Revised Design

59.

60.

61.

Public exhibition of the revised design (two-way Saunders Street) was undertaken
between 28 January and 11 February 2020, and included the following activities:

(@) apage online at the Sydney Your Say website from 28 January to 11 February
2020;

(b) 1,991 letters to local residents and businesses in the area; and

(c) recontacting all 135 people who made submissions during the original
consultation.

A total of 28 formal submissions were received during the consultation period, 26
through the Sydney Your Say website and two via email.

A number of residents requested additional time to make submissions, however, no
additional responses were received prior to Friday 14 February 2020.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

62. Of the 28 submissions received, seven favoured the original one-way design, 15
favoured the new two-way design, two supported either design and four did not
support the cycleway generally.

63. The number of submissions received were significantly lower than consultation on the
original proposal, which included

(@) 135 submissions; and

(b) eight objections to Saunders Street becoming one-way.

AMIT CHANAN
Director City Projects and Property

Anton Leddin, Delivery Manager

Timothy George, Project Manager

10



Attachment A

Consultation 2 Panels

11




/0s0zhsupAs

(&) @MNIASITALIY

108.41S JJjI - UoIssaidu ISiy deyy yiomeN m\g&m.

poutel m_ . ' ¥ — -~ ———y ,NW... Yomuasm
] H [ ] l
paisdwod . - iy
sa3noy Jeuoijealday - .u " N
= . R
' A
pouUB|d essesens "y fog
pajeidwod N T.._-»- LY w < 2130MYo0]g
5: S Ay T o a
}lomieN aig [e207] - \, »rwﬂ Wl 16 LLINY
5 g O
P TIT p— u Q: Zn
sHomaN s [euoibay | » : an AT
& I
%L
}40M31aN 319 ASUpAs / ARRASNAAS
|
LA R R
ONI. LNOWYHAd
02oe if
uolonAIsuo) pajewnsy 3
6102 Yyosey 1 o w uoleoo] 108loid
J1ounoy o B l\\
Aenigad || 0} Arenuep /g -m m
uoneynsuo) Ajunwwo)d "s - . a

*EEE6 G926 20 |[e0 sauinbus [eisusb Jo4
" 1002 AsupAs ‘1651 xog OdD ‘AeupAs Jo AlD :ssaippe [elsod

‘ne’Aob’msu’AsupAsjoRido@Ispuele lews J0 €66 S926 20 UO ‘10Jeulpioo)
wawabebug Ajunwwo) ‘Jepue wWepy Joejuoo ases|d ‘UoleLIojul 810w Jo

uUNoY 0} SBLWODINO
8y} podal pue uole}NsUod BulNp paAledal 3oeqpas) |8 Japisuoo [IM AND ay |

Res-1noA/|lounoo/ne’Aob*msuAsupAsjokyo mmm//:sdny
‘ne'woo*AesinoAAsupAs Je auluo ubissp ayi MalA UBd NOA

*0202 Arenigad |1 [aun uomqiyxe uo si oefoid siyL
*S198.11S J9)||I|N PUe Siepuneg ssoloe seoeds Buyied Jemey G| Ul Jnsal
pinom pue }9e.iS siepunes ul oiel} Aeem-om) sulelas yoiym [esodoid meu sy g
ple]

!s}9911S JaJ|INl pUe siepunes ssoloe saoeds Buiyied Jamay Inoy
Ul Jnsas pinom yolym Aem-auo }981ig siepunes ayew o} [esodoud [euiBluo ay] |

Burpwi] 10eloid

Buiaup ejdoad 1o} sseooe Aem-om) urejal pue Aemsjoho pereledes sy} ayepowLIOddE
0} 1994)S SIopuNes Ul panowal aq pjnom seoeds Bupiied Jnoy ubisep mau ey} Jepun

*sooeds Buiied mau uanss ayesio pue Aems|oAd
pajesedas sy} arepowloode Ued em ‘Aem-auo o) J98.1g siapunes Buibueyo Ag
19941 slapuneg

Bunyred olignd oy ajge|eAe aq
JIm saoeds asay} sawiy Buipeo) jo apisinQ *Adieau sseooe Buipeo] aAey ||lis sassauisng
[e00| 0s 193113 sllieH uo saoeds suoz Buipeo| swi-Jed saiy) Buisodoid aiaM

*syuswaAcIdw] mau 8y} Joj Aem axew ||Im saoeds suoz Buipeo)

awl-ped 881y} pue seoeds aleys Jeo 881y} ‘seoeds Bunyed olgnd jybie 198118 8|y UO
19a41s S9N

DNIMHVd OL SIONVHO

e
siapunes Joj jusiesal} a|gens e s| Juaswabuelie jaails plalk, B Ueall SBWN|OA B|oIYaA
Moj ay] “Inoy sead Aepssam [eoidA} e Bulinp 19811S Siopunes asn Ss|DIYaA 00 | punosy

*9]|IABU{SIT PUB UMOMMBN ‘Bd8]9) Sk yons AsUpAs jo A0 ey jo sped Jayjo
Ul uowwod s| Juswabuelle jo adA} siy] “Jeyjoue suo ssed 0} suonoallp aysoddo ul
Buljlenel; sejolyan 1o} papinold seoeds snolawnu yum pesodoud si aue| sjoiysa ajbuls

*g|qissod se Bunyied j@elis-uo yonw

SE Ulejal pue sseook ajolysA Aem-om) urelal ‘AemajoAo pejeledes eyl alepowosoe
0} JopJO Ul }98J}S SISpUNES Ul JUBWUOIIAUS Joa1is plalA, & ayeald o} pesodoid si 3
ubBisep mau 19041S Siepuneg

"Joo1IS JUNO Jeau dojs 8y} je snq oy}
10} Jem o} e|doad 1o} pue|SI MaU & 8Jeald PUE JoaliS SeUor Jeau dojs sng ey} sAowal

*A1susaib
[euolyppe Jue|d Os[e [|IM S\ "paulelas aq [|im anol ay) Buoje Aisusalb pue seeil ||y
Buiusaib pue saai]

*AjoJes aINWWOoO 0} SISpU MBU PUE JUSLIND IO}
ooeds pajosiold apinoid |im shemajoAo mau sy *sinoy yead ul AemajoAo jeaus uolun
aU} pue abplg oezuy usamiaq sdui 8y1q Aepyeam Q0g' | punolte Apealle ale aiay

JuUsWUIBA0Y) MSN 8ul Ag pepuny Aipn@q
s1 Jooloud SIy} pue siomieu oXiq o1B81BS SJUBWLIBA0Y) MSN 8U3 jo Hed ale syul aseed

'sjealig
JB|[IN PUB SISpunes Jo SapIs UIsyHou ay} uo shemajoho Aem-omi mau Buisodoid a1
suoloauu0d Bulpl J9jes

1oy iewladns yo)| 8y} 0} 192.1S JB|[I|Al SS0I0
Ajajes ajdoad djay o} sueT J9||I|\ Jeau Buissouo uelsepad meu e Buisodoid osfe alap

*19811S JUNO\ puE JO|IIN -

pue Hj9811S Sauor pue JaJ|IA -

‘oAl Jaise|\ Aueny pue jealig slapuneg -
:Je Bupjjiem sidoad o} Ajoud anlb pue oiel) Weo |IM suonossisiul pared mau saiy |
suol}Pauuod Bupjjem Jajes

‘198118 J9||IN Ul pesodoud sjuswanoidwi Buijoho pue Buiyjem

8y} 0} sabueyo ou Usaq aAeY 818y "19811S siepunes Joj ubisep mau 8y} UO }oeqpas)
JnoA seynul AsupAs jo Au ay] “Buiaup sidoad oy sseooe Aem-omy surejal pue Aemejoho
pajeledss e sapinoid yolym joa1)s siapunes Joj ubisep mau e padojaasp sey Ano syl

*SO[OIYBA 10} SSB00R ABM-OM} SUIBISI UOIUM J9811S Siopunes

104 UOKdO Jayjoue JapISU0D 0} yels Ay payse siofjiounod ‘Buresw [1oUNo) s Jequisdeq
IV "S9|0IUYaA 10} ABM-8UO }8311S SIopunes Buiyew JNoge pasies 8I1oM SUJSOUOD

‘JanaMOH "aAlisod Sem UoleyNSUOD Bulinp 108(oid 8} UO paAIigoal 3oeqpas) sy} |[eIen0

‘sjuswanoldwi dojs sng pue
Buissoio ueuisapad mau e ‘shems|oAd pajesedss mau papnioul sueld ay] ‘sjeans JolIIN

usjeud |.eM 0s ‘Atesseo8U US| Jaylo Yyoes Jo sailew 0G| ulyim sdols om} seaibe Ajuoyiny pue sispunes ul sjuswanoidwi BuioAo pue Buijiem pesodoid 1noge eale JuowiAd
noA 198.1g siapuneg Joj uondo ubisap yolym uo 3oeqpas} JnoA ayi| pjnom Al ay L JIsuel] B1elS "19811S J9||IN 4O BpIs UIayuou a8y} uo sdois sng om} BUREPI|OSUOD 818 8Uj} Ul SIONSIA puUB SassauIsng ‘sjuaplsal Yim pajinsuod Al eyl 6 10z Jequieidas uj
AVS HNOA 3AVH suofjpauuod dojs sng 123rodd SiHL Lnoav

198.1S SJapunes Joj ubisap MaN

sjuawanosdwi Bunjjem pue BuljaAd - Juowuhd ‘si1eaa1s J9[JIN pue siapunes




/0s0zhsupAs

ONISSOHD
NVIHLS3a3d
oo
Sypomoom

13341S NOINN

IRy YE

S —
i — —3
/ doissng
ONILSIXT
auenbg ENE
AVMITOAD o NOLLOISHILNI AVMITOAD L
ONILSIX3 dolssng LNINNOHIANI t
Q3uvHS NOILOISHILNI
LNIWNOHIANT
Q3uvHS

AVM-OML NIVAIFH OL 133H1S SHIANNYS

13

190418 SIpPUNES - UOISSBIAW JSIY

NOILOISHALNI B
LINIWNOHIANT ———*
Q3dvHS

HLVd Q34VHS
350148 OVZNY 3HL
OL dAVH ONILSIX3

/,
\)
\J
AVMITOAD A\

Q3AOW3H 36 O SIOVdS FHVHS HYO
$30VdS INOZ ONIAYOT INIL-LHYd M3IN
Q3AOW3H 38 OL1 S30VdS INOZ ONIQVOT INIL-1HVd e
Q31v34O 39 OL S30VS ONDIHYd MIN - s
Q3AOW3Y 38 OL SIOVAS ONIMHVd
AN

198.1S SJapunes Joj ubisap MaN

sjuawanosdwi Bunjjem pue BuljaAd - Juowuhd ‘si1eaa1s J9[JIN pue siapunes




Attachment B

Concept Designh — Revised (Option 2)

14




6MP12341S PIBIA - SI8@iIS SIepuNes B JslliN \QuO\SIeaAIS S:oPUNES B Bl uousAd\BulloRO\dMO\UBIssq! A0\ssoIiss feaniing 8 Ajunwweo AI0W-SHUNZETISHHL | NOLLYOOT T4

Gzd0 9/S1/81-€3 ov 0sziiL NP iparciddy W umela P#pUO SwswpuBWY Aa | oN | era

- %M_Moa_ v swos | W Poee0 | we peulee0 | W ussep oo e sons spunes | W1 | [ oo -

o520 e eos [ cosh
e 3N N4 Moo ———

] NOLLONHISNOO HO< 038N 38 OL LON 1L334LS d13IA L33HLS SHAANNYS | o T

oot ATNO AHVNINIM3td T1v0S OlHavHO
SININIAOHINI ONITOAD B ONIMNTVM
INOWHAJ 'SL133HLS HI TN se3IANNVS,

sja10U00 XWAH

AINGAS 20 ALIO " 610272181 03LVA AHAENW NILSNP - A8 03L1OTd

spoojesg solg sojnod

15

A1ed 8940 1seM Ao

pareys
sbpug
opzuy
07 durey

E
QUARRY WASTER DRV

SINIJNWIAOHAINT ONITOAD B ONIMIVM
INOWYHA ‘S13341S HATTIN ® SHIANNVS




Rio\ssonies imIng ® Ajunwuwod AFO\W-sIUN\ZETI4HHL\ | NOLLYOOT 14

BMPI93AS PISIA - SISBAS SIBPUNES 2 Il ) \QuO\SIeaAIS S:oPUNES B Bl uousAd\BulloRO\dMO\UBIssq!
gzd0¢ 9/S1/81-€3 ov 0oL | ™ panosddy W umela P#pUO SwswpuBWY Aa | oN | era
ontesus %zm M_Moa_ e BN pueresy e S IS Lo PO I p— st (S3INOZ ONIAVOT INIL-LHYd ANY JHYHS HYO ONIANTOND ONIMHYd 133HLS-NO
e e —
| | wouonsisnoososaasnIgor 1on 1L33HLS d13IA L3FHLS SHAANNYS | FmrEmT SONISSVd / SININIAOW FTOIHIA AVM-OML HO4 133H1S SHIANNVS 40 SNOILO3S
anes| ATINO AHVNIAINIHd YOS OlHdVHD
SLININIAOHANI ONITOAD 8 ONITYM EGER]
AINOWHA ‘S133H1S I TIIN 8 se3IANNVS,
133
bis SiNvg
|
A .
N
B N
.’1}..{«/
4
= 0L [puueyd
¥ o
% S
Q\\w@ ded 8dlQO 1s8M 36 :A.M
>
2
(8 v m
e 2
%, / kY
o
)
&

AINGAS 20 ALIO " 610272181 03LVA AHAENW NILSNP - A8 03LLOTd

16




CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 2

B sl ok PIOA\QVO\SIoaAS SIop BUIPFO\GMO\UBISS0 Au0\se01i2S EIin ' Aunuiniog AO\-SIUNZETI4HHL | NOLYOOT T4
sz40¢ 9/51/81-€3 ' N° penoiddy we umeia | pyouo swawpuaLy fg [on| ema
“oN1eBUS owswnea | Y oozt Waines 10] panss! oozt
p— t3dvd Jwos | N PORSHO | WP peuBised | NP | pisep geans plet eeas siepunes | WP | b | eiomeie
o0o 005 osz :
s L Nr1a 30800 S —__F %V
L NOILONBLSNOO HO4 03N 38 OL LON 1133418 d13IA LIFHLS SHAANNYS | =
enss] AINO AHYNINIM3Hd IT¥OS OIHAVHO
SLNINIACHCINI ONIMTOAD 8 ONIMTYM
LINOWHAd 'SLI3HLS HITTIIN B mImDZDd\ﬁmm:zu
=0
8>c
2oz e
<43
mm3
< HLYd Q34VHS 390148 OVZNY

Q3NIVL3Y 38 OL F10d LHOM didosny

@3HSITOW3A 38 OL NOISN3LX3 843 -

OL dAVH HLYd 3HVHS ONILSIX3

17

031d30X3 02 Y3HY 13NOIL d} (a3INOW3H 38 OL SIOVS ONIMHYd OML) Q31d30X3 02 VAUV JHVHS UvO
wezl STTOIHIA HOH VIHY ONISSYd 1oL d} w oL
3AINOHd OL DNIJJOLS ON A3SOdOHd woe
wogk

o -
1
o 13341S SH3IANNVS
o
= o

S
N

—_ —_— ® — —_ — —_— —_— —_—

HLYd 370A018 TYNOILO3HIA-18 I;

Q3LVHVYd3S ATTVOISAHd

Q3HSMOW3A 38 OL NOISN3LX3 843X

JAIHA YILSYIN AHHVNO

AINTAS 20 ALIO ' 61027218} 03LYA AHHNW NILSNP - A8 G3LLOT




CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 3

BMPIS8IS PISIA - SISSAIS SISPUNES B JSIIIN JUOWiIAG\I98S PISIA\QVO\SISaAS SIBPUNes  Jalli ) b

£0\dMO\uBIssQ!

[amInD @ AYunwwod Ao\-SUMZETISHHL | NOLLYOOT Tl

Ged0t 9/SH/81-€3 oy oozl | ™ panosddy Wr umeig P¥UO SlUsWPUBWY fa | on| ema
npee mwwwcw“n“ 3dvd Fwos | NP0 | AR peuBsed | NP | ypgap ,_wu__w,w) w_ s_. Tangsiepunes | A0 | 1 [ o o
000k 00's 052 ] 05
Ste EN1g 0o —
L NOILONBLSNOO HO4 03N 38 OL LON 1133418 d13IA LIFHLS SHAANNYS | =T
enss] AINO AHYNINIMIHd IS OlHAVHD
SLNIWIAOHNI ONITOAD B ONIMTYM
1NOWHAJ ‘S133HLS HITTIA WINDZDd\ﬁMEu
@Q;
I,
4/,
05 %f@
Mt 4
0, @:wo
w3Sop, e
» S
Cos" o030 W, ; . '
OQO QYQ 31d30X3 02 V3V 13X0IL de Q3.1d30X3 02 Va4V 13N0IL d2 / INOZ ONIavO1
ey wozek wezk
N -
Y
Y /A
© ©
o — 13341S SHIANNVS o .
& 3
S o |2 ﬁ
=3 L =

HLVd 370A0I8 TYNOLLO3HIa-8 _|
Q3LVHVd3S ATIVOISAHd

9e

Q
c
P
s}
)
<
£
>
2]
e
m
ms)
=}
3
<
m

18

AINGAS S0 ALI0 " 6102218+ U3LVA AHAHNW NILSNF - A8 G3LIOTd

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 1




BMPIS8IS PISIA - SISSAIS SISPUNES B JSIIIN JUOWiIAG\I98S PISIA\QVO\SISaAS SIBPUNes  Jalli )

[amInD @ AYunwwod Ao\-SUMZETISHHL | NOLLYOOT Tl

uoiseoy
Ged40S 9/SH/81-€3 oy oozl | ™ panosddy Wr umeig P¥UO SlUsWPUBWY fa | on| ema

o on Bumes

e mwwnchh 3dvd Fwos | NP0 | AR peuBsed | NP | ypgap ,_wu__w,w) w_ 5_. Tangsiepunes | A0 | 1 [ o o
o N L430NeD e —

L NOILONBLSNOO HO4 03N 38 OL LON 1133d1S d13IA L3FHLS SHAANNYS | =T

enss] AINO AHYNINIMIHd - IS OlHAVHD
SLINIWIAOHNI ONITOAD 8 ONIMTYM
1NOWHAJ ‘S133HLS HITTIA WINDZDJ\ﬁMEu

3OVdS ONMHYL L3FHLS-NO MaN

AINGAS S0 ALI0 " 6102218+ U3LVA AHAENW NILSNF - A8 G3LIOTd

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 4

3NO 31V3HO OL d3HSMNOW3ad
38 OL AVM3AIHA INVANNA3Y ww0¢n_w d
(an1oid ] 430-40Ha 01 TANNVHO) ONDidYd ON (3aNONe mﬂﬂﬂm On 25040
weyh wnod oNIddb P e
0\ 98 N
ueLh \\. N

—_— 5

13341S SHAANNVS ©

ol

o2

sl =/ O /O, —
=3
1S N — —_— b3 —_
3 —> -
—_— -
I
—_—
—
—
-— )
d OML)
aorsa0ves ML
(@3aNON3E CaoLs ON 038

weok

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 2




BMPTeaNS PlolA - SIBRNS SIBPUNES B Bl ) PISIA\QVO\SIoenS SIopunes ' ol BuipAO\dMOWUBISB Q) Ao\seomies [EAIND ® AUunwwiod AIOW-SHUNMZETISHHLY | NOLLYOO 314

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 5

Gc 409 9/51/81-€3 v oozt | ™ pano.ddy W umeig | pyouo sueLpUBLLY fg | on | ewa
‘oN 183U ‘o Bumeig Mool 10 panse! " o0zt
€86/ 1680} "3dvd FWVOS NP PoHRUD W paubiseq Nr uBisep J88.1S Pl8IA, 198.S sispunes e b Medials
ovor ws oz 0 w2
et 7 NvId LaaoNeD ——— e
L NOILONBLSNOO HOH G380 38 OL LON L3341S dT3IA 13341S mw_m_n_z_._immb Sumeig =
anss| AINO AHVYNINIM3Yd T1¥0S OlHavHD
SLININIAOHNI'ONITOAD B ONIMTVM
LNOWHAd ‘S133HLS HITTIN B mmmDZDd\swﬂo&
@ &//N/VQ
2 uls el s
Q3HSIOW3a 38 OL NVIGIW 123 nv\? o
313HONOD 40 NOILO3S : V@
] HOLVHV3S NVIG3W 3NOLSINTE
« - /
o._ —\ / Q3HSIMOW3a 38 OL
T T T I I I T I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I ONIN3AIM H1vd1004
— g
< 2
—a J— J— — —_ v
——— & w.

T Q3HSMOW3a 38 OL
ONINIAIM HLVYd1O04

Lid NOILLONNF OL 31H3ANOD
38 OL Llid H3LYMINHOLS

a31v0013d 38
OL 1HOIN 133418 S0

7l Q3AOW3Y 38 OL H3LT3HS
ANV 516002 'ON JOL1S sng

-
k!

€ NVd LdIONOD NO S3NNILNOD

AINGAS 0 ALID " 602°2+'8 ) G3LVA AHdENW NILSNP A8 031107

2




CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 6

BMP 192418 PISLA - S1994S SISPUNES 8 JSIIN | i PIRIA\QVO\SIaAIS SIp! Ad\BulloAo\gMO\uBIsaQl u: 1IND B AUnWwod Ao\W-SHunBETISHHLY : NOLLYOOT F114
52402 oss1/8le3 | oy o0zt | M worone we wweig | prouo Swewpusy g |on| ewa
o 10aUS oN Bumeig epna1 1o} ponss] - o0zt
H3dvd Swos | N POReLO | W elBssa | NP | ypieap rasns prea seenis sispunes | W | 1| SEe
€86.1E0} o000k 005 o5z 0 052
L NOLLONBLSNOD HO4 O3S 38 OL LON oL Bumeiq e
anest ATNO AHYNINMtd 05 OHdvED
SLNINIACHII ONITOAD B ONIMTYM
1NOWHAd ‘S133HLS HITIIN B wmmDZDﬁuwm_ci
=
—
-
m
v}
=z
m Q3NIVL3H 38 OL H3L73HS

ONISSOHO NVIHLS3a3d
3avHo LV a3s0dodd

ONINIAIM HLVd1004 /
NOISNILX3 g43% a3S0d0Hd

2.2

13341S "3

3.3

e —————————————

33

ANY 626002 ‘ON dOLS sng

21

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 4

¢

A3AOW3H 38 OL IHLIW ONIMEVd M

3.0

13341Ss saNor

AINGAS 0 ALIO " 61022 +8+ UILVA AHAHNW NILSNF - A8 G3LLOTd




CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 7

BMPIS8IS PISIA - SISSAIS SISPUNES B JSIIIN JUOWiIAG\I98S PISIA\QVO\SISaAS SIBPUNes  Jalli )

B

£0\dmO\uBIseq

[amInD @ AYunwwod Ao\-SUMZETISHHL | NOLLYOOT Tl

sz408 9/51/81-e3 ov oozl | N Pty we wweig | prouo swawpuBWY fa | on| ema
npee NBnEo 3dvd Fwos | NP0 | AR peuBsed | NP | ypgap ,_wu__w,w)w_ s___umw“.wmw_waugww L R R o
€86L1E0} 0004 00s 052 0 05z
o © N7 30000 ———
I NOILONHLSNOD HO4 03SN 38 OL LON a1 Bumeiq SIULIN N
enss] AINO AHYNINIMIHd IS OlHAVHD
SLINIWIAOHNI ONITOAD 8 ONIMTYM
1NOWHAJ ‘S133HLS HITTIA SHIANNYS, |
o)
c
3
>
ms)
>
o)
o
>
(w)
S7IVL30 NOILO3S SSOHO
HO4 9} 133HS 338
|
o
- - m 13341S Y3ITTIN
————
@
T —T T T T T T T = T = —r— ; _ ] .
" , £ )
@ T N s T T T T —/
ENEEEEEn o g22n ——
—_— g =

Y31713HS SNG HLIM _|
ANV1SI dOLS SNg MaN

ONLY

13341S INNOW

25

22

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 5

3.3

A3NGAS S0 ALIO " 610228+ U3LVA AHAHNW NILSNF - A8 G3LI0Td




BMP19941S PISLA - S199AS SISPUNES 8 JBIIIN JUOWUA: PISIA\QVO\SISa1S S/5pUNes B JslliN_JuouuAd\Bulldholgmo\uBissal uy: [EmIND B Aunuwiwiod ALo\w-siuniyie TIdHHL\ - NOLLOO 3113

s24d06 9/G61/81-€3 ov 00Z:1 NP :panciddy WP umelq PO sjuslpUBWY Ag | oN era
000k 00 052 0 052
NG SO £ NV1d 1d30NO3 ——
F NOLLONHLSNOD HO-4 03sN 39 OL LON sL Buimesq SIWLIN N
aneet ATNO AHYNIWM3Ed 2708 SlHdveo
SLNIWIAOHII DNITOAD 8 ONINTYM
1NOWYHAJ 'S133H1S HI TN B wmmDZDﬂuwm_oi

13341S SIHYVH
13341S INNOW 31LLN

AINGAS S0 ALIO " 61022 +8+ U3LVA AHAHNW NILSNF - A8 G3LLOTd

241

13341S Y3ITIN

3.7

(suoz paieys)
13341S NOINN ~

/

23

CONTINUES ON CONCEPT PLAN 6

SdOO0TNOILD3LIa
F10A0I8 M3N TIVLSNI

+ 1SOd IVNOIS WOH4 NOLLNg
HSNd 370A018 3A0ON3Y

13341S SIHdvH




BMP19841S PIBIA - S198A1S SISPUNES B JBIIIN ] \QwO\S15841S SISPUNES 3 Sl owd\BulpAd\dmo\uBIssal A0\ssoIiss feaniing 8 Ajunwweo AI0W-SHUNZETISHHL | NOLLYOOT T4

9/S1/81-€3

“oN Bumeig

g2 400}k

“ON 198US

€86/ 1+€0+

“ON dor SO

NOILONHLSNOO HO4 43S 38 OL LON

. NP :paaciddy NP umesg PYouD Sjuswpuswy Ag | oN area
ev ogkitL
1oie1 10} panss| —
H3dvd Fwos [ N PoRUO e pouBse | N | ugisep eens pra, eens siepures | AT [ ¢ [ e
SNOILO3S SSOHO TVOIdAL

il Bume.q

skt

o2 sre e o 09t

e ——

SN

ATINO AHVNIAINIHd

anss|

SININIAOHINI ONITOAD B ONIMNTVM
1NOIHAC ‘S133HLS HITIIN *® SHIANNYS,

loid

anvisi
ENal INVT dolssng  dOLS HLVd 3T0A0
HLVdLOO4 ~ ONDIEVd  OiddvHL /INVIOlddvHL  SNE  AYMOML  HLVYdLOO4

g€ _ &4 _ sie _ ske _ 22 _ 22 _ 9

¢ d3s0doYd
HOLvHYd3s
NVIQ3N
o'k
ANV ENNVal ElNVal HLVd 310A0
HLlvd1004 ONDIEVd Ol44vdLl OlddvdL AVM-OML HLVd1004
% g€ _ 2e _ €€ _ €' _ _ 0 _ g€

I d3SOd0OHd

ANV ANV
H3ATNOHS H3IATNOHS
370A0I8 ELNA ANV 370A0I8
H1VYd1004 3 ONIMEVd Old4vdL OlddvHL 2 ONIMHYd HLVd100d
o€ e o€ o€ v'e o€

ONILSIX3

3AHIS3H AvOod J3AIM W 0°0e
g4d3 OL gd3M 3aim w s'eh

13341S 43 TN

TS OHdVHD

HOLYHYdAS
NVIQ3N
90
ANV 133dIS q1EIA ANV HLVd I10A0
HLVd1004 ONDIHVd AVM-OML  ONMEvVd AVM-OML HLVd1004
% X2 _ [ _ 9 _ [ 92 _ X2 #

13341S dT3IA AVM-OML
d3sododd

ANV ANV ANV ANV
HLVd1004 ONMHVd OlddvdL OlddvdL ONMYVd HLVd1004
=24 1'e v'e v'e L'e Sy

ONILSIX3

JAHIS3H AVOH 3AIM W 002
43X 0L gdax 3dMm W o'kt

13341S SHIANNVS

SNOILO3IS SSOHI TVOIdAL

24

AINGAS 20 ALIO " 610272181 03LVA AHAENW NILSNP - A8 03L1OTd




BMP11511S PISIA - S19841S SISPUNES B 3N ] \QVO\SIesiIS S/epUNes 8 el ) Ad\BuIPAO\dmO\UBIseq Ai0\s801nIS IMIND B AYUNWWioD AUOW-SHUNBZETIHHLY | NOLLYOOT 114
G240 L1 @Nm—\m -3 NP :paaciddy NP umeig [k} SlusWpUBWY Ag | oN sea el
P P - - 9
on s on Sumeig N o0 | M 050 | N | o st oo | 7 | ¢ | s wous (e) 81 (€) 58 (@) e2 vL0L 3
©962150+ wos e - o - ) - 81 (et NHIHLNOS |39 B TIN s
e e — £
1 NOILONHLSNOO HO= Q35N 38 OL LON SFONVHO ONDIV oL Bumeiq e () e 0 (@ et NY3IHLHON m
onss| AINO AHVNIAIMTYd g M
SLNIWIAOHII ONITOAD 8 ONINTYM Fesonare c @ @o NUIRIAOS| ) 33015 suannvs 3
LNOWHAd ‘S133HLS HITIN B SHIANNYS, + (1) €2 (1) ez NE3HLHON x
g
% a W - 30N3Y¥34HIa a3sodoyd ONILSIX3 g
= 5 S30VdS UVHS HYO = (#) avod 40 3ais JNVN avod 5
W [ € S30VdS DNDIHVd 40 HIFWNN B
W < = LOVdINI DNIHYd 133H1S-NO 3
< H
w E ;
— 2 %
w = 2 N
w 2
=
»
9 /
4 osom
AW sypomjoopm
\
(
—
B ey
P
——
W)
=
-
©
. osenbg rW._ g h@ S0IPN}S UOISINS[S ] ol
< =) us] yiomN
uojun 7 rm =
2 Z
2 (7] z
- [e) u a
w
w z m o
= > 5
» B
on (6]
T b
% Q3NIV13d 38 OL 3NOZ sne 3
T ‘s
Q3IAOWIH 38 OL INOZ Sne
'S3NOZ sna
Q3NIVL34 38 OL SIOVS FHVHS HYO ONILSIX3 Hed 9O 1S9M IO
(€-) AINOW3H 38 OL SIOVS FHVHS HYO ONILSIXI
FEVHS Hv0
£ @Q@v /
Q3NIVL3H 38 OL SIOVdS ONIIHYd / INOZ ONIAYOT ONILLSIX3 Q\N\\v/
b
(€) SINOZ ONIAYOT INIL-LHYd OL AILHIANOD 38 OL SIOVS ONIMHYA AHYANYLS ONILSIXI w &
>
(€-) AIAOW3H 38 OL SIOVAS ONIMHY / INOZ DNIAYOT ONILSIXI x
Fs . .
(SINIL BNIAYOT 40 2AISLNO SIOVAS DNIMHVd GHVANVLS) STOVdS INOZ DNIAVO1 INIL-LHYd @ 4
W_ N
(¥) @31v3HD 38 OL SIOVS DNV LIFHLISNO MIN Wn
(91-) IAOW3H 38 OL SIOVAS ONIMHY ONILSIXI & %
o O
S30VdS DNIMHVd QHYANYLS s &VO
S <} N
aN3ov3I1 N
A




CONFIDENTIAL
By virtue of the Local Government Act 1993 Section 10A Paragraph 2

Document is Restricted

26



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Item 4.
Project Scope - Lawrence Hargrave Reserve Upgrade, Elizabeth Bay

File No: X021637.003

Summary

This report outlines the proposed improvement works for Lawrence Hargrave Reserve at 9
Elizabeth Bay Road, Elizabeth Bay. Lawrence Hargrave Reserve forms part of the small
parks and playgrounds improvement program.

The objective of this project is to provide an improved passive recreation offering which
supports the existing and future needs of a range of local users, including individuals, and
informal and formal community groups, as well as local wildlife.

The Concept Plan proposes improvements throughout the reserve, including a more
welcoming, open and accessible park entry for all abilities, with improved sight lines and
passive surveillance. Improved access is proposed within the reserve with a range of seating
opportunities that encourage social interaction. Long-term tree management principles will
be applied to enhance landscape amenity and support a consolidated and more accessible
open lawn area. The proposed Stage Two works for the Kings Cross Community Garden are
also incorporated into the proposal.

This proposal is local in scale and uses simple, robust and high quality materials which
reflect the existing neighbourhood character.

The Concept Plans were presented to the community between 5 November and 3 December
2019 and exhibited on the City's website.

Community feedback was broadly in support of the proposal. Community suggestions will be
incorporated as part of the detailed design phase.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Recommendation

It is resolved that Council:

(A) endorse the scope of work for improvements to Lawrence Hargrave Reserve as
described in the subject report and shown in the Consultation Draft Concept Plan at
Attachment B to the subject report for progression to relevant approvals, preparation of
construction documentation, tender and construction; and

(B) note the estimated project forecast and approve the additional funding in future years
budgets, which will be brought forward from the Parks General Capital Works forward
estimates as outlined in Confidential Attachment F to the subject report.

Attachments

Attachment A. Location Plan and Existing Site Photos
Attachment B. Consultation Draft Concept Plan and Images
Attachment C. Issues and Key Principles Plan

Attachment D. Materials

Attachment E. Engagement Report

Attachment F. Financial Implications (Confidential)



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Background

1.

The City has an ongoing small parks and playgrounds improvement program for parks
that are in need of upgrade works, replacement of end of life equipment, and to
provide appropriate facilities for local residents.

Lawrence Hargrave Reserve is located in Elizabeth Bay, on the roof of the five-storey
Kings Cross Carpark, opposite Fitzroy Gardens. The reserve is generally level with a
steep access slope on the western boundary to Ward Avenue and Elizabeth Bay
Road. It is bound by Elizabeth Bay Road to the north, Ward Avenue to the west, Amos
Lane to the south and a residential flat building to the east.

The site was landscaped as part of the Kings Cross Carpark development in 1975-
1978. The reserve was officially named Lawrence Hargrave Reserve in 1991.

The site is approximately 3,800 m2 and is predominately a rooftop garden. The
landscaping is in a native garden style with free-form planted mounds, turf and trees.
The mounds are used to create soil depth for the tree planting. Car park vents at the
front of the site are visual barriers and limit sightlines into the reserve from the street.
There is limited seating within the reserve, often with limited protection from the sun.
Current access into the reserve is either via the sloped lawn to Elizabeth Bay Road or
by stair access between the carpark vents. Neither of these routes meet accessibility
requirements.

There are 81 trees located on the reserve which comprise a mix of locally indigenous,
Australian native and exotic species. The majority are Casuarinas (39), with some
other Acacia binerva (Coastal Myall), Lophostemon confertus (Brushbox) and a mix of
rainforest species. The Casuarinas inhibit the growth of other species as ground-
covers or shrubs. In addition, site constraints (on slab), and planting density has
resulted in varying degrees of suppression and poor tree quality and value. The
horticultural survey indicated 48 per cent of trees were allocated an assessment of
Consider for Removal. One tree was allocated an assessment of Priority for Removal
due to a useful life expectancy (ULE) less than five years. No trees were allocated a
Retention Value of Priority for Retention or are of high or very high Landscape
Significance.

The current arrangement and condition of trees (and mounds) contribute to the poor
amenity of the reserve and the safety concerns associated with limited sightlines. The
reserve has for a long time been associated with anti-social behaviour. Poor sightlines,
low-level lighting and poor passive surveillance have contributed to this anti-social
behaviour. It also regularly has rough sleepers occupying the rear of the site.

Two memorials are located in the Reserve including:

(@) Remembrance Day AIDS Memorial Garden and Tree (Hoop Pine); and

(b) Sea King and Kings Cross Bikers memorial.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

8. A number of community events occur in the reserve including:
(@) Annual Dog Show;

(b)  Annual Memorial event associated with the Remembrance Day AIDS Memorial
Garden and Tree held on 11 November; and

(¢c) Community Garden Meetings held every Sunday.

9. In 2019, the first stage of the Kings Cross Community Garden was constructed. The
Stage 2 Community Garden works were endorsed by Council in May 2018 and were
included in investigations for the current proposals and consultation.

10. Lawrence Hargrave Reserve was identified for upgrade due to the reserve's overall
condition, including poor accessibility into and through the reserve, required tree
management works, poor sightlines and safety, limited seating opportunities and the
ongoing community garden works.

11. Investigations and pre-consultation with key stakeholders identified the key issues to
be addressed in the proposals (refer to Attachment C):

(@) Public safety and visibility concerns.

(b) Steep topography and poor access in and around the park.

(c) Lack of seating and poor placement of park elements.

(d) Large carpark ventilation and egress structures restrict usability and views.
(e) Dead space and lack of useable green space within the park.

()  Undefined park entries and lack of planting.

Consultation Draft Concept Plan - Key Principles

12. Inresponse to the identified issues, the key principles of the proposed works are (refer
to Attachment C for the Issues and Key Principles Plans):

(@) create legible and welcoming park entries and improve permeability into the
park;

(b) improve accessibility and circulation for everyone, with the creation of new
access paths and stairs, and an internal loop around the park;

(c) improve sightlines and passive surveillance (visibility) to create an open and safe
public space and review lighting to increase night-time safety;

(d) increase the useable green space (turf grass) and enhance native habitat, tree
plantings and biodiversity within the park;

(e) provide a safe and inclusive public open space that establishes positive park
uses and activities, particularly at the rear of the park; consider rough sleeping
and anti-social behaviour;

(f)  provide a range of seating opportunities (sun and shaded) that encourages
social interaction for everyone;



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

9

(h)

0
(k)
()

provide a range of recreation opportunities for everyone - residents, workers,
visitors;

define the park edges with low plantings and boundary edge treatments and
maintain and enhance existing views across to Rushcutters Bay;

be local in scale and use simple, robust and high quality materials. Improve the
parks environmental performance and sustainability, apply long-term tree
management principles;

incorporate the community garden and identify a location for expansion;

retain the existing memorials located in the reserve; and

consider and manage the limitations of the underground carpark and limited soll
depth.

Consultation Draft Concept Plan- Proposed Works

13.

A Draft Concept Plan was developed in response to the key principles, for the
purposes of broader community consultation (refer to Attachment B). The Plan
includes the following:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

The Entry Lawn:

()  New landscaping to the entry, including seating, sitting walls, tree planting
pathways and signage to create a welcoming entry to the reserve.

Improved access and circulation including:

(i)  New accessible entry ramp from Elizabeth Bay Road.

(i)  Generous direct new central entry path with direct sightline to the rear of
the reserve, providing open and clear visitor accessibility, as well as

service vehicle access for the park and community garden.

(i)  New perimeter paths system to ensure all community members are able to
equally access the full area of the reserve.

The Green:

()  Reduction of the mounds to form discreet groves, resulting in an improved
and consolidated open lawn area.

The Groves:

() Reduced and consolidated landscape mounds with additional new tree and
understorey planting.

The Tree Canopy:

(i)  Understorey opened up around the vent area with informal seating and
possible activities such as table tennis.

(i)  Improved stair entry.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

() Community gardens:
(i)  Existing Stage One community garden.
(i)  Expansion of Stage One Community Garden.

(i)  Additional Stage Two community garden areas along the eastern reserve,
including possible chicken coop, bee hotel and seating.

(iv) Additional Stage Two “Orchard’ area.

(v) Potential Stage Two community garden ‘club room’ to help activate the
vent area.

() Memorial garden:

(i)  Memorials retained, including the Hoop Pine, and settings enhanced with
seating and planting.

(h)  Amenity:
(i)  Avariety of new seating throughout the reserve in both the sun and shade.
(i)  Additional low energy lighting to main path of travel.

()  Tree management and habitat planting:
(i)  New tree planting for habitat and shade throughout the reserve.

(i)  Selective removal and replacement of trees, particularly casuarinas,
throughout the reserve.

14. Community feedback on the Draft Concept Plan principles and proposals was broadly
in support. Refer to the Engagement Report (Attachment E) for a detailed description
of the consultation process and findings.

15. Issues raised by three or more people were as follows:
(@) Requestto keep the reserve as itis (4):

The current condition of the reserve is rated 4 from an Asset Condition
assessment completed in 2018. This means works are required to ensure the
reserve meets minimum standards across the local government area. The
upgrade aims to address the key issues currently associated with the park which
include: accessibility, sightlines, ongoing tree-management and limited seating. It
also aims to ensure the reserve meets both the current and evolving needs of
the local community.

(b) The park often looks neglected, additional maintenance is carried out especially
as off-leash park (4):

Lawrence Hargrave Reserve is maintained to meet the Parks service level
agreement. Lawrence Hargrave Reserve maintenance operations have been
discussed with Kings Cross Gardener. (Refer to Attachment E for additional
information).



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

9

Request additional watering/irrigation is carried out as part of upgrade,
consideration of water harvesting and rain tanks (3):

Water harvesting opportunities will be investigated as part of the detailed design
phase.

Provision of open green space is important (8) + a significant proportion is being
converted to hardscape and reduces the useable green space for both people
and habitat (turf and trees) (3) + ‘activating’ this site will conflict with the
opportunity for this park to be a peaceful and quiet place (4):

A variety of user groups utilise the park for a range of purposes. The proposed
design allows for these existing uses to be continued alongside each other in
public space with significantly improved amenity and safety. The existing turf
area is divided by large mounds which limits useable space for the community.
The proposed design will maximise provision of open lawn which is flexible for
both passive recreation, such as dog walking, and more active activities such as
kicking a ball. It will also be suitable for larger community events. A perimeter
path has been included to ensure all community members are able to equally
access the reserve.

Request planting considers urban wild-life; species that are native and will attract
native bees and generally help with biodiversity (5):

Final species selection will be defined during detailed design; proposed tree
planting and other planting will be considered with relation to habitat, shade and
amenity.

Do not support provision of table tennis due to the noise associated in such close
proximity to residences (6) + one suggestion to provide chess/draughts as an
alternative:

The proposed design aims to activate the area behind the carpark vents and
improve sight lines into the space. The purpose of the table tennis tables is to
provide play amenity for all community members to enjoy. Other options to
activate this space will be further investigated in detail design phase.
Request existing memorials are retained in-situ (3):

All memorial plaques and the Hoop Pine are to be retained, protected and
remain where they are. The upgrades aim to improve the quality of the park such
that the opportunity for the memorials to be seen and acknowledged by the
community is improved.

This includes the following memorials:

o Remembrance Day Memorial Garden; and

. Sea King and Kings Cross Bikers memorial.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

16.

17.

(h)

(i)

(),

(k)

()

Request seating is comfortable, timber seats with backs (3) + Request seating is
protected/sheltered i.e. in the shade (5):

There are currently only four seats located within the reserve. The proposed
works will provide a range of seating types, both traditional seats (with backs and
arm-rests), as well as more informal sitting walls. Seating will be located across
the reserve such that there is opportunity to sit in either the sun or shade
throughout the year. A total of 37 new traditional seats are proposed. Quantities
of seats will be reviewed during the detailed design phase to ensure adequate
seats are provided and there is sufficient budget available for installation.

Do not support inclusion of community garden club-room (4):
Additional information requested on Club-House Design and function:

The community garden club-room will be investigated as part of a future works
package. It currently does not form part of this delivery.

Request for sculptures/public art:

Public Art is not currently proposed as part of this scope of works, however could
be considered as part of a future program of works.

Request for inclusion of bins:

Bins will be located at the entry/exits to the reserve. The requirement for any
additional bins will be incorporated during the detailed design phase.

The City currently separates its waste after collection and removal from site due
to the high rate of contamination. This system is currently under review.

Request for consideration of provision of toilets:
The City has a Public Toilet Strategy, which defines the provision of public toilets

across the local government area. There are new public toilets 30 metres away
in Fitzroy Gardens.

Additional information has been requested and provided about materials selection
(refer to Attachment D).

In response to this consultation the following has been noted and will be incorporated
during the detailed design phase:

(@)
(b)

(€)

(d)
(e)

ensuring the reserve is retained as passive and quiet space and the green open
space and provision of habitat planting is maximised;

provision of a drinking fountain, additional bins, lighting and bike racks;
testing alternate opportunities for activating the seating area near the carpark
vents, including review of the materials of the proposed table tennis to reduce
the noise impacts;

provision of lighting to main paths of travel;

investigation of opportunities for water harvesting;



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

(f)

(9)

inclusion of the delivery of the Stage Two community garden as part of this
scope of works; and

further investigation of feasibility of the proposed community garden club-room,
noting that it is not included in this scope of works.

Tree Management

18.

19.

The current condition of the existing trees within the reserve has been assessed by the
City's consultant Arborist. Due to their current condition and arrangement within the
reserve, selective removal and replacement of a number of trees is proposed as part
of these works to improve sightlines within the park, improve the provision of shade
and increase the provision of habitat.

The following tree management and planting is proposed as part of the park works:

(@)

(b)
(€)

Thirty-seven trees will be removed, mostly Casuarina species and Acacia's with
some additional removal of species including; Stenocarpus sinuatus,
Podocarpus elatus, Castanospermum australe, Tristaniopsis laurina, Melia
azedarach.

Forty-four trees will be retained, including the Hoop Pine.

Thirty-seven replacement trees will be planted which will provide shade, habitat,
and amenity.

Key Implications

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 Vision

20.

Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This plan is aligned with the
following strategic directions and objectives:

(@)

(b)

Direction 6 - Vibrant Local Communities and Economies - this project will provide
an improved open space which meets the needs of a wide variety of user groups
both existing and future, and will provide opportunities for social interaction both
informally as a passive recreation space and for larger scale community events.

Direction 9 - Sustainable Development, Renewal and Design - this project will
provide improved open space infrastructure for the public, supporting a variety of
user groups in an improved landscape setting.

Organisational Impact

21.

This upgrade will provide improved passive recreation facilities. The assets will require
ongoing maintenance.



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Risks

22.

23.

Not implementing this scope of works could result in failure to meet community
expectations.

During the detailed design phase additional consultant services are required to review
both the structural impacts and drainage requirements of the proposed works on the
existing carpark building. Scope and budget implications of these investigations will be
known and resolved at the detailed design phase. A provisional sum for water-proofing
has been estimated and included in the financial implications (refer to Confidential
Attachment F). Costs associated with any structural rectification to the carpark (if
required) are not currently part of the proposed budget.

Social / Cultural / Community

24.

The reserve is used by a range of community members for a variety of purposes,
including dog walking and for passive recreation. The new community garden also
forms an important piece of community infrastructure. This project will support and
enhance the existing uses of the park and provide improved safety and amenity,
encouraging healthy activity and social interaction.

Environmental

25.

26.

A Part 5 Assessment including Review of Environmental Factors will be prepared for
the upgrade works in accordance with the Environmental Planning and Assessment
Act 1979 and the Infrastructure SEPP (2007).

Enhancement of planting is consistent with the Urban Ecology Strategic Action Plan
and Urban Tree Canopy objectives.

Budget Implications

27.

28.

There are sufficient funds in the current year capital budget and future year forward
estimate to proceed to Design Development phase. There are insufficient funds in
future years forward estimates to proceed to construction.

Current cost estimates and financial implications are detailed in Confidential
Attachment F.

10



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Relevant Legislation

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Attachment F to the subject report contains confidential commercial information which,
if disclosed, would:

(@) confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom Council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business; and

(b) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

Discussion of the matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the
public interest because it would compromise Council's ability to negotiate fairly and
commercially to achieve the best outcome for its ratepayers.

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

State Environmental Planning Policy (Infrastructure) 2007.

Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012.

Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) - under the Act, a council's charter is to provide
adequate, equitable and appropriate services and facilities for the community and to
ensure that those services and facilities are managed efficiently and effectively.
Disability Discrimination Act 1992 - the City has a responsibility to ensure, as far as
practicable, that people with disabilities have the same rights to access services and

facilities.

Companion Animals Act 1998 No 87 - Division 1 Section13 - Responsibilities while dog
in public place.

Critical Dates / Time Frames

37.

Current Program Dates:

(@) Council Approval of Concept Design March 2020
(b) Complete Design and Costing Mid 2020

(c) Tender Preparation Late 2020

(d) Construction Start Early 2021

(e) Construction Duration 24 weeks including four week contingency

11



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

Options

38. Proceed with progression of improvement works as outlined in this subject report
including relevant approvals, preparation of construction documentation, tender and
construction.

39. Reduce Scope and Stage Works. If works were to be staged there is a risk of
increased costs and a longer period of disruption for the community.

40. Project does not proceed - this option is not recommended as the existing park has a
number of associated risks and compliance issues with regard to accessibility.

Public Consultation

41. Consultation was undertaken as a two-part process: pre-consultation / early
engagement and public consultation / exhibition. For a detailed description of the
consultation process and findings refer to Attachment E.

42. A pre-consultation notification letter / email was issued to the following local
stakeholders to notify them of the project, provide a link to a pre-consultation survey
and offer to meet on site to discuss the proposed upgrade.

(@) Kings Cross Community Garden Group;
(b) 2011 Residents Association; and
(c) Remembrance Day Group.

43. There were five submissions during the pre-consultation period resulting from the pre-
consultation survey and pre-consultation meeting with Kings Cross Community Garden
Group.

44. The public consultation / exhibition involved the following:

(@) aletter sent to 4,813 local residents about the concept design and inviting them
to provide feedback;

(b) a stakeholder email sent to key stakeholders, inviting them to give feedback on
the proposal. The email was sent to:

()  Kings Cross Community Garden Group;
(i) 2011 Residents Association; and
(i) Remembrance Day Group;

(c) awebpage on SydneyYourSay showing the plans for consultation from 5
November to 3 December 2019. Four hundred and twenty individual users
viewed the page;

(d) two Have Your Say A2 panels installed in the park notifying park users of the

proposed works, providing contact details of the Design Manager and a web
address to the SydneyYourSay page; and

12



Environment Committee 2 March 2020

(e) acommunity meeting was held at the Rex Centre in Potts Point on 19 November
2019. Approximately 150 people attended the event.

45. There were 28 submissions received during the consultation feedback. This included
submissions via an online feedback form, post and the Sydney Your Say email
address.

46. Responses ranged from comments, objections, suggestions and questions. Feedback
has been collated into a number of themes as follows and is documented in detail in
the engagement report (Attachment E):

(@) General comments related to project scope, consultation process and park
maintenance.

(b) Specific comments about the proposed works related to open green space,
access and entry, trees/planting, table tennis, memorials, seating, lighting,
materials, community garden and community garden club room.

(c) Suggestions of items which could be considered as part of the works.

47. In response to this consultation the following has been noted and will be incorporated
during the detailed design phase:

(@) ensuring that the reserve is retained as passive and quiet space and that the
green open space and provision of habitat planting is maximised;

(b) provision of a drinking fountain, additional bins, lighting and bike racks;

(c) removal of the proposed club-room;

(d) testing of alternate opportunities for activating the seating area near the carpark
vents, including review of the materials of the proposed table tennis tables to
reduce the noise impacts;

(e) investigation of opportunities for water harvesting;

(f) inclusion of the delivery of the Stage Two community garden as part of this
scope of works will be investigated subject to availability of funds;

(g) further investigation of feasibility of the proposed community garden club-room
noting that it is not included in this scope of works.

48. Additional information has been provided with regard to materials selection (refer to
Attachment D).

AMIT CHANAN
Director City Projects and Property

Sophie McNamara, Design Manager

13



Attachment A

Location Plan and Existing Site Photo

14




Location Plan

POTTS POIMT

LYy
"
"
e
frd
':%-\.'
L= o |
W= T "'._r"\l L=,
z
Keal
=1

RUSHCUTTERS EAY

Fod | =
d/fe

Bdrada
a3

s

L7
m

—
=

Y

StLuke's
Hospital

75

RLISHCUTTERS EAY

© City of Sydney Council 2018. All Rights Reserved. This map has
been compiled from various sources and the publisher and/or
contributors accept no responsibility for any injury, loss or damage
arising from the use, error or omissions therein. While all care is

19

A4 1:1,500

Date:28-Jan-20

taken to ensure a high degree of accuracy, users are invited to
notify Council’s Spatial Services of any map discrepancies. No part
of this map may be reproduced without written permission.



Existing entry to Lawrence Hargrave Reserve across
Elizabeth Bay Road.

rv

N

Stage 1 Kings Cross Community Grden

Existing lawn area 1Existing lawn entry on Elizabeth Bay Road




Attachment B

Consultation Draft Concept Plan and
Images

17




@IS ALY apeibdn Yied aA19saYy aAeibieH aduaime]

UUON WOz wg| wg w0

"S991] 8PRYS PUR IBlIgRY MaU Jo Buijue|d 8y} pue Seuliensed 1Soul JO [eAowal epnjoul sjesodold (810N

uspieo = Bunueld pue sa|qe) SIuus)

ﬁ., 4 s . e o . |ELIOWRN 8y | ] .Wo0.-gNjo, UspIEB AYUNWIWOD a1njny [elusiod 9 9|0l Ym eale Buness [ewloul - Adoue)) eal] 8y, 9

la by - aoe.I8)/eale Bulleas mau Yim aaly/uspied [eLOWs|\ e Aijus Jrels panosduy| e
M_, < y usp.leb pauieial Ajlented

i Ayunwiwod omy eBess sy 0} dn yred 8|qisse00y 9 sea1) Bunsixe Ylim spunowl adeospue] - ,8A0IL) 8y, 8

=~ Buness youaq pue [e1oy 880 Bunueid reicey pue Buness moN )

‘dooo usyaIyd yum uspleb Ajunwwod om| abels e

yied [esjued meN

Buness pue spaq uspied e
[euonippe yim uspred Ajunwwod suQ abelg e Bunueid pue Buiess meu yum eale sbejuol) 198.1S 8
eole ume| Uado - usaip aul, @ dures Anus meN @)
dwes Aijus 8|qIs$800E MON 6

syJom pasodo.d

Buiiess Yim seal) 1inij JO SA0IL) @

sjeas MeN [T
s|lep Buis meN

o0}
Buined JUN/BU0IS sl

Buined [enein

Bunueld meN

TRIEN

S80I MON

soal] Bunsixg |



@MNIASIIALID 1dasuon Yeaq - apesbdn yied aniasay anelbieH asuaime

.uaain ayl, Jo uoissaidwiy ISy

‘Bunueld reygey pue Buluspled Ajunwiwod 1o} seiunuoddo siow pue $8a1) mau
‘Bunued pue Buizess siow ‘BuiyBi 'syyed Aijus mau sepnioul Jdeouoo jpedp ey "ubisep jdesuoo yelp pesodold
8y} U0 Yoeqpas] JINOA 8liAUl pue Aeg Uiegezi|g Ul enlesay eaelfier aousime e yied sy epeiBdn oy ueid sp

'SE8JE [B20)
1no ul Alsisaipolq Hoddns pue Usjocd Ao Ino desy disy ‘Aofus 01 sucliane Jo) seords usdo Alenb Jeneq s1esld
1M sapelBdn yed 9say "SIOLSIA puUB SI9MIOM ‘SlUSpISal 1o Jo) Alloud ybiy e ale saoeds uado usaib Aljenyd

‘syed [eoo| Jable| o syed
19500d |lews wou) ‘eale ABUPRAS Jo AlD Byl sSoloe syded 09 Uyl alow apeldn |im am ‘sieah 0| 1xau syl Jaag

puno.byoeg




Attachment C

Issues and Key Principles Plan

20




‘slaned Buiddsls moleu Jo |BAOLIS)
‘8’1) 558008 Ases pue sjusllieal] abps
Alepunoq ‘sBunueid mo| Buisn saujus
sed Buiwodjem pue a|qifie) aiesld

Bupue|d jo
}oB| pue saLijus yJed paulyspun ‘9

‘aleudoldde sliaym AJSI8AIpoIq
syed sy Buioueyus ‘sbunue|d aaneu
SSEW YIm Spaq yonul soe|dey

AUUNuILoD syl o) soeds

uspief AJUNLILIOD Mal B aplacld
‘8UoAlans 10} salpunpoddo uoesloal
pue Buness Buipiaoud xed syl jo
seale ayi ||e aelbalul puB 8lAIRY

wed ayj uiyym soeds usaib
s|geasn jo yoe| pue adeds peaq ‘g

SIANSSI AT LAVHA - IAHTSTY STAVHOHYH FJONIMYT | AVEOAN & SANTASIIALIY

“8|qIS50d aUsLM SBINJONS

ssalfie pUB LoIeIUSA 8U] Lsauds
pue 81e00(8y ed syl ojul seuybis
pUE soUe|I8AINS aAssed saoldu|

‘SMSIA pue
Ajligesn jou3sau sadnyoruys ssaibas
pue uope|jusa yedies abie 'y

'589UBIUS Yled 1. )| pe}edo| pue
150d abeubis AsupAg Jo A0 palepdn
Yl subis papunoll ||em aoe|day

“[MOG BOp L LIIUNO) BUBULP [|2}sul

pUE UonoRIalUl 21005 sebeinoous
1ey] '(epeys p uns) suondo Buijess
81qISS802E |8 JO AlBLIEA B 8PIACId

‘SjuswWa|d yJed jo Juswaseld
Jood pue Bupess jo yoe g

‘Buibps

pue juswssed usxolq 'splezey
duj Jiedal pue xued syj punole pue
Ul syied doo| [eulsiul Le 81e8lD)

"‘BU0AIBAS 10) LIOIRINOLID pUE
ANgIssaooe anoldw 01 Aydelbodo]
des)s ssalppe puUe S|8As| MaIAS Y

“yed sy} punoJe pue U] Ssadde
Jood pue AydeiBodo) dasys 'z

‘198415 8L}
0} dn »ed syj Buiusdo 'sisuleq [BnSiA
apiaoid Jey] sduwinio a8l BULENSEYD)
Juonelsban saowal pue saulybis
Ja)jaq mo|e 0] s|ans| spelbay

sped sy oju seuiybis
pue soue|ieans aassed saoudu

‘SLIaduUo0d
AqIsia pue Ajages dlqnd 'L




8102 Aew SN
weubelq sa|dipulid Asy eaq

‘SpAEpURIS UBlensny pue sapod ufisag
faupAs 10 A0 aujo swawainbal Ayl JaaW 8L SAOYAI LIS

(sBumyIyby a3 Angeuelsns pue
aaueulopad pluawuAUa syied ay) asoudw| gL

unoeyag
|e1a0s-jue pue Buidaa)s yBno Japisund piL

‘yidap j1os pajwy Spedied punosbispun
aul Jo s1oedw ayy abeueul pue Japisuog 1

'sieusew Aenb ybiy pue isngou 'aiduis asn ZL

‘Aeg slapnaysny
0] 550108 saala BUisixa saueyus pue ueliew L

'suauean abpa Alepunog pue
sBunueld mol uum sabipa xued auy auysp Aueald oL

‘Rales

auwg-ubiu asealaul oy Bunyfl maiaal pue adeds

Jjgnd ales pue uado ue ajeaud o] (Aupoisia)
aaue|iaains asissed pue sauipulis saoidw| 80

‘panbal i puedxa
a Aypoissod auyl sey eyl uoneao| aleudosdde
ue Ul uspiel AJunwuiod Juauewad e apiaold 80

‘aunAIaAa 1oy
uopaesaiul (e120s safelnoaus Jeul (papeus pue
uns) sanunpuoddo Guneas jo afiuel e apiaold 20

LI0YSIA 13XI0M SWLARD JUBRIS3) BUDAIaAT
0y saunuoddo uoneaisal jo afuel e apikold 90

Sied auy Jo Jeal aug e
SalARIe pue sash led aanisod saysioeisa euy
adeds uado aygnd aAlsn|aul puE 3RS B apiAdld GO

SHed aul UL AJIsaAnoig
pue sfunued Je3i0ey aAjeu adueyua pue
(sselfi uny) aoeds usalfi a|geasn ayl asealdl| o

'SaInjaruls LoRe|IusA 81ea0jal o [enualod pue
L0eI0| ay] ssasse 'sadnias Bunsia malkay 0

Syied auyl punoue dooj [eLwaiul Le pue 'siels pue
syed $5332e M3U JO LOEaID 3L UM ‘BunAlaaa
10) LUoenaag pue Agissadie saoudul]  zo

Sed ayy ol Ageauuad ascudul
pue saLqua xed Bulwoa@m pue aigqifia) a1galn Lo

\\\.\\
STIIONNdAD  JAMISTH STHAVHOAHYH FONITHANYT | IAVEDN &) @NIASIIALI



Attachment D

Materials

23




1dasuo) yeiq - apesbdn Mied anlasay aneibieH asuaime

pIRY2IO

SuOoIsSpueg paysni)

o

9H9jed s|elale|\ dAledIpu|

24



Attachment E

Engagement Report

25




Engagement report




Engagement report

Engagement
report

Lawrence Hargrave Reserve, Elizabeth Bay
February 2020

cContents

Background 5
Engagement summary 6
Key findings 7
Engagement activities 16

Appendix 18

3



Engagement report



Engagement report

Background

Over the next 10 years, we’re upgrading more than 60 parks across the City of Sydney
area, from small pocket parks to larger local parks.

Quiality green open spaces are a high priority for our residents, workers and visitors. This
network of park upgrades will create better quality open spaces for everyone to enjoy, help
keep our city cooler, and support biodiversity in our local areas.

Prior to finalising the designs, we are consulting the community and stakeholders on these
proposed park improvements. In 2019, we consulted on our stage 14 parks, which include:

— Ernest Pederson Reserve, Glebe

— Fig Lane Park, Ultimo

— Kings Lane Reserve, Darlinghurst

— Clyne Reserve, Millers Point

— James Hilder Reserve, Surry Hills

— Beaconsfield Park, Beaconsfield

— Daniel Dawson Reserve, Alexandria
— Strickland Park, Chippendale

— Hollis Park, Newtown

— Palmerston Avenue Steps & Sarah Peninton Reserve, Glebe
— Cardigan Street Reserve, Glebe

— Lawrence Hargrave Reserve, Elizabeth Bay



Engagement report

Engagement
summary

From 5 November to 3 December 2019, we asked the
community for feedback on plans to improve Lawrence
Hargrave Reserve in Elizabeth Bay.

The consultation was an opportunity for stakeholders and the community to provide
feedback on the proposed design. Consultation activities included online engagement, a
letter to residents, project signage at the park and a community meeting.

This report outlines the community engagement activities that took place to support the
consultation and summarises the key findings from the consultation.

Purpose of the engagement

The purpose of the engagement was to:

— gather feedback from stakeholders and the community about the proposed upgrade
— inform any amendments to the proposed concept design

— determine the level of satisfaction with the proposed concept design.

Outcomes from the engagement

Sydney Your Say

The Sydney Your Say page was visited 420 times during the consultation period. This result
indicates a high level of interest and that a significant number of people were engaged over
the consultation period.

Submissions

We received a total of 28 submissions during the consultation period. This included
submissions via an online feedback form, post and the Sydney Your Say email address.

We also received feedback from 5 stakeholders and/or residents during the early
consultation phase which took place from 25 February to 11 March 2019.

6 30



Key findings

Overview of key findings

The majority of respondents were in favour of the upgrade, with suggestions for changes
and additions outlined below. There is strong support for improving the accessibility of the
park and many respondents highlighted the importance of maintaining the open green
space. Six respondents opposed the proposed table tennis tables. Respondents highlighted
the importance of planting species that are native, will attract native bees and help
biodiversity.

Rating elements of the park upgrade

Respondents who completed the online feedback form were asked “how important are the
following elements of the upgrade to you?” The results are below.

NOT VERY TOTAL
IMPORTANT IMPORTANT IMPORTANT N/A  RESPONDENTS
New accessible ramp 23.08% 38.46% 30.77% 7.69% 26
entry into reserve 6 10 8 2
Street frontage area 23.08% 30.77% 34.62% 11.54% 26
with new seating and 6 8 9 3
planting
New central path 36.00% 32.00% 20.00% 12.00% 25
9 8 5 3
New seating and habitat 15.38% 34.62% 42.31% 7.69% 26
planting 4 9 11 2
‘The Green’ —open lawn 19.23% 26.92% 50.00% 7.69% 26
area 5 7 13 2
Potential future 61.54% 3.85% 19.23% 15.38% 26
community garden 16 1 5 4
‘club-room’

Subjects/topics raised in submissions

Several subjects/topics were raised in the feedback received. These were presented as
concerns, suggestions and/or requests and are summarised below.

General

Project Scope/Timing/Budget City of Sydney Response

General comments recommending that the 4 An asset condition assessment completed in

reserve is retained as it currently is. 2018 identified this park is in need of an
upgrade.




Engagement report

Specifically some respondents noted that
money could be better spent elsewhere and
that the community had already rejected
such a proposal (linked with Fitzroy
Gardens) in 2010.

This means that works are required to ensure
that the reserve meets minimum standards
across the LGA.

The upgrade aims to address the key issues
currently associated with the park which
include; accessibility, sightlines, ongoing tree-
management, limited seating. It also aims to
ensure that the reserve meets both the current
needs and evolving needs of the local
community.

Additional information requested on the
timing of construction.

Timing is subject to endorsement of the
Scoping Report by Council and completion of
detailed design. Construction is estimated to
begin in 2021.

Some respondents noted it was difficult to
accurately respond to one of the survey
guestions that combined seating, planting
and table tennis into one question.

We acknowledge that this question was
confusing and responses to this question will
not be included in the engagement report.

Request an extension and that the project
be shelved until all issues resolved and
solutions exhibited.

Maintenance

All comments received will be considered and
reported to Council. Council will decide
whether to proceed to detailed design. We will
keep all people who made submissions up to
date on the project’s progress.

The concept design was on public exhibition
for 29 days, with face to face meeting offered.
The activities undertaken to promote the
public exhibition are outlined below.

City of Sydney Response

considered particularly with reference to the
use of the park as an off-leash area, and for
the community garden.

Two respondents suggested that water-
harvesting and rain tanks be considered as
part of this upgrade.

Comment that the park often looks 4

neglected. Request _that addltlonel . The City’s maintenance team undertake daily

maintenance is carried out especially as it's inspections at Lawrence Hargrave Reserve

an off-leash park. removing rubbish and providing garden
maintenance and lawn mowing as required.
The current maintenance regime meets the
City’s Parks Service Level Agreement.

Request that additional watering/irrigation is 3 Water harvesting opportunities will be

investigated as part of the detailed design
phase.

Proposed Works

32




Engagement report

Open Green Space City of Sydney Response

Comments that provision of open green 4 A variety of user groups currently utilise the
space is important. park for a range of purposes. The proposed
That it needs to be flexible for low impact deS|gn allows for'these existing uses to be
: continued alongside each other in public
community events R : .
space with significantly improved amenity and
Should not reduce area for kicking a football safety.
Comment that a significant proportion is 3 The existing turf area is divided by large
being converted to hardscape and reduces mounds yvhlch limits useable space for the
the useable green space for both people community.
and as habitat (turf and trees) The proposed design will maximise provision
o o _ of open lawn which is flexible for both passive
Comment that "activating’ this site will 4 recreation such as dog walking and more
conflict with the opportunity for this park to active activities such as kicking a ball. It will
be a peaceful and quiet place. also be suitable for larger community events,
One respondent highlighted the importance such as the annual dog show and community
of informal, un-programmed spaces suitable garden events.
for picnics and ‘unstructured time’. A perimeter path has been included to ensure
that all community members are able to
equally access the reserve.
Will this park continue to be off-leash? 1 Yes
Will there still be space for people to play 1 Yes
soccer/football on the grass?
Access + Entry City of Sydney Response
Additional information requested on what 2 The stair access from Elizabeth Bay Road is
‘improved entry’ means currently in poor condition. The ‘improved stair
access’ will increase safety of the stairs,
ensuring that appropriate materials are used,
hand-rails are provided and sight-lines are
maximised from both within the park and from
the street level.
General support for improved accessibility 1 There is currently no accessible entry to the
into and within the park. reserve. It also has limited sense of entry from
68% of people noted either IMPORTANT ISR (B [Rer
OR V. IMPORTANT when asked about the The proposed works will provide an accessible
new accessible entry. entry to the park which will enable all
community members to access the park.
Noted the importance of making the entry 1 Access required for maintenance and the
welcoming community garden will also be provided.
65% of people noted either IMPORTANT The improvement works will also provide a
OR V. IMPORTANT when asked about the greater, stronger sense of entry and
works at the street frontage on Elizabeth welcoming from Elizabeth Bay Road through
Bay Road materials, signage, improved paths and site
lines.
Request for consideration of the access and 2 Streetscape improvement works are not part
connection (both physical and visual) across of the scope forpth's rade P
Elizabeth Bay Road (near Police Station) P 'S Upg '

33



Engagement report

Trees/Planting City of Sydney Response

Additional information requested on what 2 The Kings Cross Community Garden Group
plants are proposed for the orchards and for will help inform this.

i3 U B S (e Species will be selected based on site-specific

requirements for shade, habitat and ‘food’

trees.
Did not support the removal of the 1 Selective removal of trees have been
casuarinas due to the impact on local proposed to address structural loading issues
habitat on the carpark roof slab, tree condition,
removal of tree species that inhibit the growth
Supported the removal of the casuarinas 1 of others, and improving site function including

safety and sightlines.
Request that planting considers urban wild- 5
life; species that are native, will attract
native bees and generally help with
biodiversity

The proposed works aim to maximise the
useable open space whilst retaining some
significant clumps of existing trees.

Replacement tree planting is proposed in the
concept design, which will provide habitat and
amenity/shade.

Final species selection will be defined during
detailed design.

Table Tennis City of Sydney Response

Do not support provision of table tennis due 6 The proposed design aims to activate the area
to the noise associated in such close behind the carpark vents and improve sight
proximity to residences lines into the space.

1 suggestion to provide chess/draughts as The purpose of the table tennis tables is to
an alternative provide play amenity for all community
Support provision of table tennis behind the 2 members to enjoy.

carpark vents to activate the space and The City is open to other options to activate
provide activities for older community this space and this will be further investigated
members to use. in detail design phase.

Request that existing memorials are 3 All memorial plaques will be retained and
retained in-situ protected, and remain where they are. The

upgrades aim to improve the opportunity for
the memorials to be seen and acknowledged
by the community.

This includes the following memorials:

e Remembrance Day Memorial Garden
e Sea King & Kings Cross Bikers

memorial
Additional information requested about the 2 The ‘Memorial Garden & Hoop Pine’ is an
‘Memorial Garden’ existing garden located at the rear south-

western corner of the site, which
commemorates local residents who have died
as a result of AIDS. It is described as the

10 34



Engagement report

Remembrance Day memorial. No changes are
proposed to this garden and associated tree.
Additional seating and paving is proposed to
increase amenity for the annual memorial
event.

City of Sydney Response

Currently, there is limited seating opportunities
within Lawrence Hargrave Reserve.

The proposed upgrade works will provide a
variety of seating types including traditional
seating (with backrests & armrests), as well as

more informal sitting walls.

Seating with be provided throughout the

protected/sheltered i.e. in the shade

Request that lighting is considered as part
of this proposal to ensure a safe, pleasant
environment. Ensure proper lighting for
night.

Support the use of crazy paving

Request that seating is comfortable, timber 3
seats with backs (eg. traditional style, with

timber and curved back. Similar to seats at

entry or in Fitzroy Gardens)

Request that additional seating than 1
currently proposed is provided

Comment that the proposed sitting walls will 3
be uncomfortable and potentially attract

anti-social behaviour

Request that seating which is 5

reserve, creating opportunities for people to sit
in the sun or in the shade.

A total of 37 new traditional seats are shown
on the consultation concept plan, with a
significant amount of informal wall seating also
provided. This is considered sufficient given
the size of the park.

Quantities of seats will be reviewed during the
detailed design phase to ensure adequate
seating opportunities is provided.

City of Sydney Response

A lighting design will be prepared as part of
the detailed design phase.

City of Sydney Response

Additional information has been provided with

Comment that the proposal will ‘wreck the
distinct old world character of the suburb’

regard to materials (see Attachment C).

Materials will include stone paving, stabilised
gravel, timber seating and 65 lineal meters of
seating walls.

Proposed materials will reflect the existing
character of the area and support the local
scale of the park. All materials will be
considered with reference to safety and will
meet any relevant standards.

Community Garden and Community Garden Club Room

11

35



Engagement report

Community Garden City of Sydney Response

Comment that the area for community
garden appears to have shrunk.

Stage 1 Community Garden will be increased
in size by approximately 100m2.

Future Stage 2 Works are proposed to be
approximately 360mz2.

The proposed orchard will then provide an
additional area for community garden
activities.

Delivery of the community garden expansion
will be considered based on available funding
and may require staging.

Additional information requested on the
proposed bee-hotel, safety considerations,
and ongoing maintenance.

The bee-hotel and chicken coop are proposed
as part of the stage 2 community garden and
would be installed and maintained by the

Additional information about the proposed
chickens — who will look after them?

Community Garden Group under their Plan of
Management requirements.

Access to this area of the community garden
will be restricted to community garden
members only.

The bees will be Australian native stingless
bees. There is no official bee keeper
appointed however the community garden
group can delegate that role to someone as
needed.

Representatives of the community garden
group will be required to attend a native bee
workshop that the City organises.

What access will be provided during
construction? Will the works be staged?

Community Garden Club Room

Additional information requested on club-
room design and function.

Maintaining access to the community garden
will be prioritised during the construction works
through staging, however access may not be
possible throughout the entire construction
program. Council will liaise with the Kings
Cross Community Garden Group regarding
this.

City of Sydney Response

The community garden club-room will be
investigated as part of a future works package.

Do not support inclusion of community
garden club-room.

2 people requested additional information
on the club-room design and function.

Percentage of people surveyed who think
the community garden ‘club-room’ is:

- NOT IMPORTANT 62%

- IMPORTANT/V. IMPORTANT 24%

- NOT APPLICABLE 14%

It currently does not form part of this stage of
works.

12

36



Engagement report

Two people provided suggestions for the 2

design of the club-room.

Shipping container — example at Rose Bay

community garden.

Covered gazebo to be located at rear of the

site with permanent table for gardeners and

public.

Additional suggestions

Request for sculptures/public art. 3 Public art is not currently proposed as part of

Included 2 requests for this ;gopedof Workts, Pov;/etver could be f

reference/acknowledgement of Lawrence Coni' ered as part of a future program o

Hargrave through sculpture or WOrKS.

interpretation.

There were also 2 requests for mosaics

(examples provided in submissions).

Request for inclusion of bins (including 1 3 Bins will be located at the entry/exits to the

request for recycling/separated waste). reserve. The requirement for any additional
bins will be investigated during the detailed
design phase.

The City currently separates its waste after
collection not on site due to the high rate of
contamination. This system is currently under
review.

Request for consideration of provision of 3 The City has a Public Toilet Strategy which

toilets defines the provision of public toilets across
the LGA. Public toilets are not currently
proposed as part of these improvement works.

Request for inclusion of a drinking fountain 1 A drinking fountain with a dog bowl attachment
will be included in the upgrade. Its location will
be determined as part of the detail design
phase.

Request for inclusion of 2-3 bike racks 1 Bike racks will be included in the upgrade.
Their location will be determined as part of the
detail design phase.

Request for acknowledgement that the site 1 As part of the proposed works, the existing

is located on Gadigal Land and also part of park signage will be reviewed and updated as

the Kinneil estates, the Tamworth Mansion required to ensure appropriate

terraces etc. acknowledgement and histories are
represented.

This will be completed as part of the detailed
design phase.

Request that community garden policy 1 The Community Garden Policy is to ‘ensure

locates gardens which take advantage of that there is potential for a community garden

‘ugly urban space, not green space’. within a 15 min walk of the dwellings of most
city residents’ and ‘recommend the

13 37



Engagement report

development of new community gardens on
land established for community use as part of
proposed park upgrades and developments.

This will be dependent on the interest of the
local community to support the garden
operations’.

The provision of a community garden at
Lawrence Hargraves is consistent with this.

Request a playground be included as part of

the scope of works.

Noted by one respondent that Fitzroy
Garden Playground is not sufficient for the
number of children in the area.

Suggestion to include a swing and slide.

Fitzroy Garden Playground is 85m from
Lawrence Hargrave Reserve and is
considered a neighbourhood sized playground
providing dynamic, active, imaginative & social
play opportunities. Waratah Street Reserve
Playground in Rushcutters Bay is 250m from
Lawrence Hargrave Reserve and offers
additional opportunities for dynamic and active
play and sensory nature play. Woolloomooloo
Playground and Beare Park Playground are
the next closest playgrounds, offering a variety
of play opportunities within 450m of Lawrence
Hargrave Reserve. While the proposed
upgrade works does not include off-the-shelf
play items, it does provide a flexible open
space for leisure activities and informal
unstructured play.

Request that an area for dogs to go to the
toilet is provided.

The reserve is currently a designated off-leash
area. This will be retained after the
improvement works. Bins with dog poo bag
dispensers will be provided.

The City will further investigate options for dog
toilet amenities in the design development
phase.

Request for inclusion of a compost/seat
combination.

To be investigated as part of the detailed
design phase.

Request for a stage for annual dog -show

To be investigated as part of the detailed
design phase.

Request for more taps

To be investigated as part of the detailed
design phase.

Request to reinstate rosemary bush in
association with the war memorial. They
would like this reinstated for the Annual
ceremony held here on 11 November
(Remembrance Day).

This will be incorporated in the detail design
phase.

14

38




Engagement report

Rushcutters Bay Park, Darling Point - put 1 Rushcutters Bay Park is outside the scope of

table-tennis here instead works for this project. Suggestion has been
passed to the Parks team.

Embarkation Park, Potts Point - consider 1 Embarkation Park is outside the scope of

providing a small swing and slide here. works for this project. Suggestion has been
passed to the Parks team.

Any small park in Europe or New York - 1 Noted. The proposed design will maximise

they provide for residents including dogs provision of open lawn which is flexible for

and not overfilled with equipment. Residents both passive recreation such as dog walking

want peace and quiet in these busy areas. and more active activities such as kicking a
ball.

15

39




Engagement report

Engagement
activities

Early engagement activities

Several activities were undertaken to engage residents living in the immediate area and key
stakeholders to inform the development of the concept design.
1. Early engagement survey

From 25 February to 11 March 2019, adjacent residents and key stakeholders were invited
to fill out an early engagement survey or email feedback to the Sydney Your Say email
address. Five stakeholders gave feedback, which is captured in the ‘key findings’ table.

2. Email to key stakeholders

Four groups were contacted about the proposal during the early engagement phase,
including the Kings Cross Community Garden Group, Friends of Fitzroy Gardens and
Lawrence Hargrave Reserve, 2011 Residents Association, and Remembrance Day Group.

3. Letter to residents
During the early engagement phase, a letter about the proposal was distributed to 9
residents living immediately adjacent to the park.

4. Meetings with Kings Cross Community Garden group

On Wednesday 20 March 2019 and Friday 23 August 2019, the project team met with the
Kings Cross Community Garden Group to discuss the project. Feedback from these
meetings were fed into the development of the concept design.

Public exhibition activities

1. Sydney Your Say webpage

A Sydney Your Say webpage, cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/your-say/park-playground-
upgrades/improving-lawrence-hargrave-reserve was created. The page included an
electronic copy of the proposed concept design, survey and other key information about the
consultation.

2. Online feedback form via Survey Monkey

The community and stakeholders were able to give feedback using an online feedback
form. A link to the feedback form was provided on the Sydney Your Say website.

16 40



Engagement report

3. Sydney Your Say e-News

The consultation was included in the Sydney Your Say November 2019 e-Newsletter (4,070
subscribers).

4. Consultation letter

A letter was posted to residents, inviting them to give feedback on the proposal. 4,813
letters were distributed.

5. Notification email

An email was sent to key stakeholders, including the Kings Cross Community Garden
Group, Friends of Fitzroy Gardens and Lawrence Hargrave Reserve, 2011 Residents
Association, and Remembrance Day Group, inviting them to give feedback on the proposal.
6. On site signage

Two notice boards were installed at Lawrence Hargrave Reserve, inviting people to give
feedback on the proposal.

7. Community meeting

A combined community meeting about two projects happening in the area was held at the
Rex Centre in Potts Point on 19 November 2019.

Approximately 150 people attended the event. Feedback from this consultation session is
incorporated into the submissions table above.

17 41



Engagement report

Appendix

Appendix A: concept design and artist impressions

Existing Trees

New Trees

New Turf

‘The Green’

New Planing y,
Gravel Paving

Stonz/Lnit Paving

comss NewSiting Walls

- New Seals

Proposed works
@ New accessible eniry ramp @ Grave of fruit trees with seating
@ New entry ramp @ e Green' - open lawn area
@ sireet frontage area with new seating 3°d planing @ Slae One comumunity garden with adciloral
garden becs and seat ng
@ New centra path
3 ; 8 Stage Two commimnity garden witr crickan Goap,
@ New seating and haoiat lating e holel anc bench sealing

Q) The Grove - landscape mounds wih existrg iress @ Aocessiie patup o e stage wo communiy
partialy e ned garden

@ imoroved stair enlry @ Momorial gardentres with now seating arcajtonace

@ “The Tree Canopy' - inforrral seating area with table @ Potential future community garden ‘club-rcom
tenn's t3oles and planting. %

Note: Proposals incluce removal of most casuarinas and the planting of 1ew habitat and shade trees,

Lawrence Ha eserve Pa

Artist’s impression — The tree canopy perspective

18 42



19

Engagement report

Artist’s impression — ‘The Green’ perspective

43




Engagement report

Appendix B: Sydney Your Say webpage and November 2019 e-Newsletter

20

Improving Lawrence

We plan to upgrade Lawrence Hargrave
Reserve in Elizabeth Bay and invite your
feedback on the proposed design.

Hargrave Reserve

\

Under review

Contributions to this
consultation are closed for
evaluation and review. The

project team will report back
on key outcomes.

Key dates

Public consultation period
5 November to 3 December 2019

The upgrade will provide a safe and inclusive park for everyone to enjoy. It will

also complement the community garden by improving access and safety.

Community meeting
19 November 2019

Quality green open spaces are important for our residents, workers and
visitors. Over the next 10 years, we're upgrading over 60 parks in our area.
These park upgrades will create better quality open spaces, help keep our city

cooler, and support biodiversity.

The proposal for Lawrence Hargrave Reserve will: Contacts
« create welcoming park entries and improve access into the park Sophie McNamara
« improve accessibility with 2 new ramps into the park, staircase upgrades and Design Manager

anew path to the community garden

provide a range of seating

02 9265 9333

increase the useable green space with a new central turf area

enhance native habitat plantings and biodiversity within the park.

Lawrence Hargrave Reserve is built above Kings Cross car park. To reduce

structural and loading impacts on the roof, we'll remove some trees including Related pr0]ects
most of the casuarinas. This will also open up the usable green space and
improve safety and sight lines in the park. Trees will be replaced with new » Park and playground upgrades

mature trees to provide the same amount of canopy coverage.

Community meeting

Point

On Tuesday 19 November from 6pm to 7.30pm, the Lord Mayor and City staff
will be at the Rex Centre (68-60 Macleay Street, Potts Point). They'll talk to
the community about improvements to Macleay Street and Lawrence

Hargrave Reserve.

Links

How you can give feedback Online form ('

Improving Lawrence
Hargrave Reserve,

Elizabeth Bay

The reserve's upgrade will provide a

safe and inclusive park for everyone
to enjoy. Have your say on the
proposed design.

Read

44



Engagement report

Appendix C: consultation letter

+61 2 9265 9333
FITY UF SYUNEY @ Town Hall House council@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

456 Kent Street GPO Box 1591 Sydney NSW 2001
Sydney NSW 2000 cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
5 November 2019
Improving Lawrence Hargrave Reserve

The City of Sydney plans to upgrade Lawrence Hargrave Reserve in Elizabeth Bay and
invites your feedback on the proposed design. The upgrade will provide a safe and
inclusive park for everyone to enjoy. It will also complement the community garden by
improving access and safety.

Quality green open spaces are important for our residents, workers and visitors. Over
the next 10 years, we're upgrading over 60 parks in our area. These park upgrades will
create better quality open spaces, help keep our city cooler, and support biodiversity.

The proposal for Lawrence Hargrave Reserve will:

+ create welcoming park entries and improve access into the park

* improve accessibility with two new ramps into the park, staircase upgrades and a
new accessible path to the community garden

¢ provide a range of seating

e increase the useable green space with a new central turf area

+ enhange native habitat plantings and biodiversity within the park.

Lawrence Hargrave Reserve is built above Kings Cross car park. To reduce structural
and loading impacts on the roof, we'll remave some trees including most of the
casuarinas. This will also open up the usable green space and improve safety and sight
lines in the park. Trees will be replaced with new mature trees to provide the same
amount of canopy coverage.

The proposed design for the park is on the back of this letter. You can give feedback on
this proposal by 5pm on Tuesday 3 December at cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/park-
playground-upgrades

Community meeting on Tuesday 19 November

On Tuesday 19 November from 6pm to 7.30pm the Lord Mayor and City staff will be at
the Rex Centre (58-60 Macleay Street, Potts Point). They will talk to the community
about the Macleay Street upgrade and improvements to Lawrence Hargrave Reserve.

For more information about the project, please contact Sophie McNamara, Design
Manager on 02 9265 9333 or email sydneyyoursay@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

Yours sincerely,
{)y.‘H \ :
L

Belinda Graham
Delivery Manager, City Projects and Properties

21 45



Engagement report

Appendix D: on-site signage

Over the next 10 years, we’re You can view the proposed design and
upgrading more than 60 parks across give feedback at cityofsydney.nsw.gov.
the City of Sydney, from small pocket au/park-playground-upgrades

parks to larger local parks. Consultation closes at

Quality green open spaces are a high 5pm on Tuesday 3 December 2019.
priority for our residents, workers and
visitors. This network of park upgrades
will create better quality open spaces
for everyone to enjoy, help keep our city
cooler, and support biodiversity in our
local areas.

For more information about the project,
please contact Sophie McNamara,

Design Manager on 02 9265 9333 or email
sydneyyoursay@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au

22 46



CONFIDENTIAL
By virtue of the Local Government Act 1993 Section 10A Paragraph 2

Document is Restricted

47



	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Grants and Sponsorship - Round Three 2019/20 - Environmental Grants - Environmental Performance Grants
	Attachment A - Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Building Operations Grant Program
	Attachment B - Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Building Operations Grant Program
	Attachment C - Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Innovation Grant Program
	Attachment D - Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Innovation Grant Program
	Attachment E - Round Three 2019/20 - Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessment Grant Program
	Attachment F - Round Three 2019/20 - Not Recommended for Funding - Environmental Performance - Ratings and Assessment Grant Program

	3 Streetscape Improvements - Saunders and Miller Streets, Pyrmont
	Attachment A - Consultation 2 Panels
	Attachment B - Concept Design - Revised (Option 2)
	Attachment C - Financial Implications (Confidential)

	4 Project Scope - Lawrence Hargrave Reserve Upgrade, Elizabeth Bay
	Attachment A - Location Plan and Existing Site Photos
	Attachment A. Location Plan and Existing Site Photos
	LH Location Plan
	LH Existing Conditions

	Attachment B - Consultation Draft Concept Plan and Images
	Attachment C - Issues and Key Principles Plan
	Attachment D - Materials
	Attachment E - Engagement Report
	Attachment F - Financial Implications (Confidential)




